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EVERYTHING WE DO 1S
DRIVEN BY OUR PURPOSE

Our purpose is
to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders
by making a

difference to our
colleagues, our
customers and
suppliers, and
our communities.




DIPLOMA AT A GLANCE

Diploma PLC is an international greup distributing specialised
products and services to a wide range of end segments in our
three Sectors of Controls, Seals and Life Sciences.

We are a well-diversified and resilient business and our
decentralised model means our businesses are customer-
oriented, accountable and empowered to deliver.

OUR SECTORS {REVENUE}*
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Our businesses design their individual value-added business models to closely meet the
requirements of their customers, offering a blend of high-quality customer service, deep
technical expertise and innovative solutions. Local cultures are created through our decentralised
management structure but we recognise a set of values that exist throughout the Group and
unite us as Diploma.

MBIAIIAD

VALUE-ADD IS AT THE WE HAVE A DECENTRALISED BUSINESS MODEL
HEART OF WHAT WE DO  WITH SHARED AND ALIGNED VALUES

Technical expertise s ' Determined to get better
. every day

1oday o1bajbng

Service-led propositions Striving for high standards

Innovative solutions , ¥ e Doing the right thing

TRACK RECORD OF COMPOUNDING GROWTH
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15-year EPS CAGR:15%
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Organic growth

15%

Reported revenue growth'

Qo

Ml O

dehsfed operating margin'

18.9%

Adjusted EPS growth!

20%

Free cash flow conversion’

O%

Mozl oS0 2y

Our Colleagues

We have worked hard to retain
great talent by engaging
colleagues across the Group., Our
Engagement Index is testament
to our businesses’ efforts.

Net debt/EBITDA'

ROATCE'

1/.5%

Model High tesns

Our Customers

Responsive customer service is
one of the key ways that cur
businesses deliver value, we are
proud that they are recognised
by thelr customers.

Our Suppliers
During the year, our businesses
have engaged their key suppliers
rmeaningfully on human rights,
labour laws and the environment
through cur Supplier Code.

Dividend cover'

2.0x

Our Communities

As a decentralised Group,

we want to support the local
communities and causes that
mactter most 1o our businesses.
We will cantinue to match our
businesses’ fundraising in FY23.

FY 2022 FY 2021 % change
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Colleague Engagement indes

“Since beginning a business
relotionship with Hercules OEM
in 2003, we have seen a supplier
relaticnship grow into a true
portnership. Over the years the levef
of service has continued to excel”

Nepturne, o dercales OEM customer

o/8

Key suppliers idertified
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STAKEHOLDERS

KEY ELEMENTS OF QUR
LONG-TERM VALUE
CREATION STORY

QOur business model

Our strategy

Delivering value responsibly
Sector reviews

Governance
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WHAT WE DO

DIFFERENTIATED VALUE-
ADDED SOLUTIONS

Qur value-aad distribution model
underping everything we do and
i5 the foundation of the Group'’s
success. We supply products

and services erivical to customer
needs. Our service component
builds loyclty and resilience,
pricing power and margins.
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WHAT WE DO

SUSTAINABLE ORGANIC
GROWTH STRATEGY

Organic growth is our number
one priority. All of our businesses
have fantastic opportunities.
We are focused on business
revenue diversification to drive
organic growth, build scale and
imncrease resilience. Cperating

v fragmented marxkets, we also
seak to make complermentary
acadistions to accelerate
organic grovth,
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SCALING OUR VAL
ADDED MODEL

e
As our businesses grow oﬂﬁf"
scale, they need to evolve their
operating maedel to continue to
deliver their value-add custormer
proposition. Alongside this, we are
quietly evolving the structures,
capability and culture of our
decentralised Group to support
the busiresses on their journey
to scale.

S ez PLC Anrunl Report 2022
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WHAT WE DO

DELIVERING VALUE
RESPONSIBLY

Delivering Value Responsibly,
our E5G fremework, puts
environrmental and social
impact at the forefrent of cur
strategy and culture, We are
focused on the key areas in
which vwe can make o difference
to our clleogues, custorners
ond suppliers, cormmunities,
anlhcreholders.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

DRIVEN BY ' " QOUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES
OUR PURPOSE

Our businesses deliver value-added services

and solutions to a wide range of customers and
end segments. Our value-add component creates
customer loyalty and share of wallet; reputation
and market share growth; and pricing power

and margin.

Responsive customer service ;:

T

Our purpose

is to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders by

making a difference
to our colleagues,
our customers and
suppliers, and our
communities.




THE GROUP ' WE DELIVER
FOR OUR
STAKEHOLDERS

Q

As a customer-service organisation, our
decentralised approach is central to our success.
The Group has an important role to play in
supporting our businesses.
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CHAIR’S STATEMENT

Our businesses have strong cultures, but et e
share the same inherent values - they are BRI L
accountable, entrepreneurial and empowered  8card changes

LA o Garn e e o = e
LT T Tl tme Ll

to deliver for their customers.
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Very strong financial performance, B T . L . -
excellent strategic progress DLt TAET L ‘ — feo-s
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CEO’S REVIEW

| am delighted with our 2022 financial
performance and strategic progress. The
management team and all my Diploma
colleagues do a brilliant job - thank you.

Very strong results and excellent
strutegm progress

A vefy strong ﬁnunc:c:l perforrnance

Controls +24% AR S AU B

Yoer N St

Organic growth

+15%

Very strong organic growth driven by
our revenue initiatives, positive demeand
and pricing

Sustainable organic growth strategy:
revenue diversification driving growth,
building scole ond increasing resilience

1. F‘os:tlonmg behmd hlgh growth end
segments g

Technology = .- - - = -

Renewab{e energy ond rnfrastructure
lnvestment T P

Acceieratmg dmgnostncs spendlng

2. Geographic penetrctlon of core
developed economies:

Norﬂw American Aftermarket - -
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CEQ'S REVIEW
CONTINUED

- LJR Electronics (Controls): @ . - - Portfolio discipline

Operational excellence: -

Semte e o B

_ R&G (Seals):

e

Scaling our value-added businesses Fc-cilrty.
and the Group

Scoling our value-added businesses - Talent: i oeetrner -

4 2a
ACT (Seals}: o o

. <~ Core Competencies

R

Supply chain: 2.+ - - £ -
Sili;:oﬁe Solurtioins (Cor;tro!s): -

- Tw-o small bolt-ons at R&G {Seals): -

Commercial discipline (-or pricing)

. _: '-:71 We have maintained high-teens
S n L s margins of

180




Scaling the Group

VLT T

Delivering Value Responsibly:
embedding into our commercial
strategy and culture

S

Excellent and consistent colleague
engagement LR

ey e e of B

score: = 000 RE

JRRTR [ Ll Es T=ETLL G T

Irncreésingig the diversity of our Senior
Management Team (SMT} - - -

;

Carbon ermissions flat despite 15%
orgaric revenue growth .21

Increasing resilience underpins our
outlook

We have grown EPS by

26%

sustaining our impressive compounding
track record

Jehnny Thomson
Chief Executive Officer

O

MBIIAIRA
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STRATEGY

Building high-quality, scalable businesses

for sustainable organic growth

1. Revenue diversification
to drive organic growth

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value-added customer proposition

e DT - e e e TN
oo 20 Are Lo Renoor L0E7

Compounding
Financial
Model

Organic
growth

Revenue
| growth

S

! Operating

i Margin

Cash
conversion




1. Revenue diversification to drive
organic growth

Our sustainable growth strategy is focused on revenue
diversification to drive organic revenue growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating in a broad range of markets, all
of our businesses have fantastic opportunities. Our strategy is
focused on growing, diversifying and scaling in three ways:

0] 02 03

Positioning behind Geographic Product range
high-growth end penetration of core extension to expand
segments developed markets addressable markets
All of our businesses have We are relatively We extend our product
opportunities to tap into underpenetrated in our ranges incrementally

high growth end segments, core developed markets within our businesses

many of which also have of North America, Europe and at portfolic level.

a positive impact on the and Australia where there

environment or society. is significant potential to

increase market share.

STRONG ORGANIC GROWTH TRACK RECORD:

TARGET:
MID-SINGLE DIGIT

ORGANIC GROWTH
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

2. Targeted acquisitions to accelerate

organic growth

Focused portfolio development is key to the sustainability of our
growth strategy. As we grow, it is important that we focus on the
key, scalable business lines that represent our model and which
we are the right owners to grow and scale.

O

03

Acquisitions to
accelerate organic
growth

R R B TR

“Our approach to acquisitions
has become more structured
and strategic. This has
expanded our acquisition
pipeline, enabling us to take
advantage of a busy market
whilst also maintaining our
strong financial discipline.”

Steve Sargeant,
Corporate Development
Director

A disciplined
approach

Historic M&A spend (Em)

44622
- 1856
783
378 27

Success factors

Target attributes

Strategically & financially disciplined

2018 2019 2020 200 2022




CASE STUDY

Windy City Wire:
accelerating organic growth for the
Group

Windy City Wire is a leading value-added distributor of
premium quality low voltage wire and cable.

Acquired in October 2020 for £348m, the business
represented a material strategic step forward, accelerating
organic growth for the Group as a whole. Importantly,
Windy City Wire diversified Controls into the large,
attractive US industrials market and significantly increased
the Group's exposure to high growth end segments.

VT dy City Wine:
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION:
ACQUISITIONS ACCELERATING ORGANIC GROWTH

Acquisition of Accuscience in Ireland: Acquisition of LJR Electronics in the US:
positioning behind high growth end segments penetrating core developed economies and product
and penetrating core developed economies. range expansion to expand addressable markets.

.
ACCUSCIENCE » LJR -

T R0 ME DT S T

.
L)
-

.- Characteristics:
Characteristics: e
| Value drivers:
Value drivers: S Tmamo o

Portfolio fit:
Portfolio fit: e B



CASE 5TUDY

Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group in
the UK: penetrating core developed
economies and product range extension

In April, we acquired R&G Fluid Power Group (R&G), a high-
quality aftermarket distribution business for our Seals Sector
in the UK, for ca. £100m.

R&G is a value-added distributor of o diverse range of industrial,
nydraulic and pneurnatic products (inciuding seals and
gaskets). Its value-added proposition is based on responsive
customer service, tTechnical advice, breadth of stock and
product customisation. Over time, the management team has
puilt o platform with extensive reacn across the UK, including
through consolidating a number of regional distributors to
extend geographic and product reach.

Characteristics: Portfolio fit:
Lt o ueenddded afterark=t cistribsutor Seal= i core
[HERAR _Koreack

- Flaid F ' IrOfatl rargs

Value drivers:

st Groaric gnmetn
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value-added customer proposition

Our service component builds loyalty and resilience, pricing
power and margins. As our businesses grow, they evolve their
operating models to continue to deliver their value-add
proposition at scale — how a £10m revenue business delivers for
its customers is very different to a £100m revenue business.

We have created a frameweork for our businesses to plot their
journey te scale, including defining the right target operating
model of the future, developing the Core Competencies that
underpin it and the capability that will deliver it.

Evolve target operating model

Scaling cur
value-added
businesses Core Competencies Capabilities

Core Com;ﬁetencies

Supply Chain Operational Commercial Route to
Management Excellence Value-Add Discipline Market




4, Evolve the Group to support
decentralised delivery

Our value-add distribution model underpins everything we do
and is the foundation of the Group’s success.

MBIAIBAD
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Scaling
the Group
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION:
SCALING OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES AND THE GROUP

Australian Life Sciences: building a scalable Chicago June 2022: sharing best practice
piatform for growth and building leadership networks
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CASE STUDY

Talent

“Investing in talent is critical to the
sustainability of our growth”

Jill Tennant
Group HR Director
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STRATEGY
CTONITINUED

5. Delivering value responsibly

Our DVR programme is built on five,
material focus areas and positioning
ourselves for cormmercial growth with
a positive impact on society and the
environment. Embracing DVR is key
to executing our strategy, fulfilling our
purpose and scaling and managing
our business sustainably.

e
AAREEY.
£
FirFES

DIVERSITY, EQUITY
& INCLUSION

COLLEAGUE
ENGAGEMENT

HEALTH & SAFETY DELIVERING
VALUE RESPONSIBLY

22 Dinlome PLC Anr ool Seonrt 2€
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By aligning our businesses with our five
focus areas and positioning ourselves for
commercial growth with a positive impact
on society and the environment, we can
play a meaningful role in building a more
sustainable world.

MBIAIBAQ

Delivering for our People Delivering for the Environment  Delivering a Positive impact
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Read about our performance in each of our focus areas (o]

[ d

on pages 36-47. =

2

5

e

g

Qur businesses have established DVR committees and Read more about our DVR metrics ond targets on g
appointed persons responsible for performance and page 53. =,
progress against targets. S

Read about our DVR governance, responsible business
practices, and policies and procedures on pages 50-57.
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DELIVERING VALUE R,'ES;PONSIBLY\.
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DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR ™
OUR COLLEAGUES
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Our colleagues are the foundation of our
business. They deliver value-add to our

customers, execute against our strategy
and are essential to our ongoing success.

Cur decentralised Group employs co. 3,000
coelleagues across multiple busineszes,
gecgraphies and communitizs. This yeor, we
welcomead ca 500 new collecgues through
acquisitiors. The safety, wellbeing and
ergagernent of those colleagues is our
primary concern anc central to how we

deliver volue,

Doveloping, attracting ard retaining tolert
inan squitable anzirclusive ervironment
will support our journey to scale, and is an
impaertant dierentiatar in a challorging
labour market. Protecting our cal'e and

ar abele cuitare s we grove anderpins
st performance and helps us sttract

high guality coguisition:.,

89%

of our colleagues are proud to work for
their business

Britliant leadership

Cur decentrelised model mears that aur

Serior Leadership Team (5L1) plovs @ key
- Celtare cna strate

as the porformance

oy

rob=in pro
of tha G
of their & s and Sectors, Our 50T -
comuorised of our Fxecutive feom, the
Managing Directors of our busiresscs and
key G rales - has cemonstrated brilliant
leadership during FY22, continuing T2 look
cfler end support our colleagues, serve our
customers ong show great agility and
resilience deapite geopolitical and ecencmic
urcertainties.

35 Diplorma PLC Annual Report 2022

In June this year, we brought together

members of the SLT in Chicago to
celebrate their hard work and discuss
our strategy. This was the SLT’s first
time meeting in person since the
pandemic and o key opportunity to
strengthen networks, build our culture
and integrate new senior leaders

Building engaging and fulfilling careers
We continue 1@ evalve our colture wnc
support colizague encagamenrt auross Lhe
Group. We coguire new businesses every
year and give caretul corsiaerationr 16 bow
we cnboard ceclheagres that join us through
acquisition.

Oroup internal cormamonication is a powerful

tool for as - cur CLO wpdates sur colleaygues

directly through quarterly vidsos and
RESIUSIANERRTE I (RS

seclors thiovgh our internal neweletter, This

year we imtroducad o leaming moragernsnt

system, which is currently being rolicd out

055 the Group.

e s 2l

cloprmient of talent supports our
stroteqy, desper =rnent ard iz
importart ot every e
Many of cLr caolles
trainirg, whetner thraugh apprerticeships
cr external certification. Thirougt OVR
programme, we heve startes to
networks that “acilitats ko ;
across certain functions sach as —ealth &
Safety, Supply Chain Managerment, and HR.

Mental health and wellbeing
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sl existirs busircsses. Acauisiliors
ars Brough onto the progranmie curng
onboarding. Counaelling is cizas offered 1o
sinesses where oollea s have suifforod
bereovernant o tragic event,
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Engaging our Colleagues

Engaged colleagues perform better. Our

o b Pl o colieagues colleagues have great technical expertise
and in-depth knowledge of their products
2022 Hightights and markets. In a challenging labour market,
S e e sgement index engagement helps us to hold onto that
e o= e talent, knowledge and expertise.

management system

86%

response rate

79%

engagement index

KPI

Engagement Index

{ar externally benchmorked score
from cur annual engogement survey)

Action during 2022

P IoogeTe C Lt

Target . ’
Maintain an engagerment index G-
of 70%+ -

Ongoing Focus

- Build out our learning management
system

- Continued focus on wellbeing
and mental health

- HR network to support best

practice .
- Continued leadership development “It's I'ECI"y important to us that

we continue to prioritise and
engage our colleagues across
the Group. Earlier this year we
held our second engagement
survey. The engagement index
was 79% with over 2000
colleagues taking part.”

Jill Temnant,
Group HR Director




/9%

all of our businesses achieved an
engagement index within a range
of 75-85%

Leadership style

75% 2%

2022 75
2021 73

Q0%

of our colleagues believe that their
work is meaningful, according to our
engagement survey

88%

of our colleagues believe that their
manager empowers them, according
to our engagement survey

Learning and development

70% 42

2022 70
2021 66

Wellbeing

79% +1%

2022 79
2023 78

CASE STUDY
M Seals UK Employee
Working Group

“{ like that | can act on behalf
of my colleagues to voice their
concerns or issues. | also like
that we develop a plan or
response to each issue right
there in the meeting so it gets
sorted straightaway. It's a
great way to communicate as
all the branches of the business
are there together at the
meeting — whether it's a
finance issue, a management
issue, or a warehouse issue.”

Sati Sing,

Warehouse Operative and
member of the Employee
Working Group at M Seals UK
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Ensuring Health & Safety

Keeping our colleagues healthy, safe and

N s thet no one s harmed well is a prerequisite to doing business.

We have a duty of care to any person who
2022 Highlights is working remotely, working at, or visiting
e oty ol a Diploma business.

- More robust reporting

- Reduced severity rate

- Improverment in potential
hazard reporting

- Improved governance at business
and Sector level

10.6

LT rate

449,

reduction in severity rate

KPt

Lost time incident (LTI} Rate
{number of lost time incidents per - S C- - R
1,000 employees) TR T e

FY23 Target
5% year-on-year reduction in LT rate

Ongoing Focus Totre noe LT L O
- Build positive mental hecith S e T e men T
and wellbeing L - I O

- Continuous improvement and focus

on Health & Scnfety culture of colleagues feel that Health &
- E.nsuTe process in place to reduce Safety is taken seriously in their
risks identified by potential hazard business, according to our Colleague

reporting Engagement Survey




Group performance stats
LT rate

Severity rate

Potential hazards

T CASE STUDY

North American

.. Seals
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Promoting Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

We remain committed to better

e e e s TEPFesentation across our Group and
feel able to bring their full sel k¢ H H H
et ful oo t© businesses, particularly in management

and leadership positions.

goﬁxlgg:)%h;;ers-lt% Equity SE ST e L B S IR e s Gender diversity (as at 30 September) ‘
& Inclusion Policy -
- Unconscious bias workshops
- Training for Senior Leodership
Team on inclusive leadership
- Ethnicity reporting

27%

of the Senior Management Team
are wormen

[ Mo  Female

Total

KPI
% of women on the Senior
Managerment Team

FY30 Target
Women represent 40%-+ of Senior
Management Team

QOngoing Focus
- Succession plkanning

- Implementing the Diversity, Equity ’ SR R s Ethnic diversity {as at 30 September)
and Inclusion Policy across the Group
- Further learning and knowledge Preter

sharing Nom- Ethhic  rotic }
. ey minerity  sew  Tera
/ - -
o B 13 T i

of external hires into the L )
Senior Management Team during the c e e L
year were women . . Sl

% of women on SMT

2022 27%
2021 24%



Diversity of our Senior Management Team

Gender diversity Ethnic diversity

Women 27% Ethnic minority  10%

Prefer not to say 15%

Gender diversity across the Group

Board All employees

Women 43% Women 31%

CASE STUDY
International
Women’s Day

[ 7o)
+
-
[*]
+
[1:4
Q.
(2]
o
[1]
o
=]
=
+

international Women's day was
celebrated by businesses across the Group
an 8th March 2022,

Businesses brought their teams together

at lunches, discussicn groups and through
fundraising events to discuss bias and the
challenges faced by women in the workplace.

Ali colleagues were also given the
oppertunity to attend o #BreakTheBias
workshop, which highlighted exarnpies of
unconscious bios and the role that we can
ol play in tackling it at work.



VALl L RESFOMSIBLY

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
THE ENVIRONMENT




We are a Group whose businesses, supply
chain and end users stretch across the globe.
As a distributor, our operational emissions are
relatively modest, and the vast majority of
our emissions will sit in Scope 3.

Cualeulotion of our Scope 3 emissions s a
complicates umder’tﬂ%ng inadecentialiszd
Group, such as curs, We are working to do
this ghead of submitting o net zero target
10 the Science-Based Targets Initiative (SBIi}
Auring Y22

T ciirncte arisis is wraent and global, we
recognise the imp our wicer footprin
and the narrowing window of cpportunity
tomoke o posi cortributicn in tackling
this cricis. Boyord tre mora obligation that
wz leel we alse see the contributicn 1o the
fong term valus crection and arowth f our

BLsIiNetsss,

43 Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022

Our calleagues are increasingly passionate

about climate change and expect the Group

ipport their initiatiyv
Therz is clso the opportunity to celiver
value to our custornears by offering more
sLstainable procucts ana solutions, buildin:
ot knowledage anc expertise, and vesrking
to b g rmore carbar efficient business that
con support their net zerc <

O positive impoct revenae initiatives help
L& 1o positio s for cormimercial
growth with o pasitive impact on socicty
and the srvirorrnent.

yoday sibalnig




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Management of our supply chain is key
e o ooy PRt to our broader social and environmental
impact as a Group, and a key part of our

2022 Highlights strategy and commercial proposition. Our
- Active engagement with our H . .
comphore oo e mvanent focus is to work with our suppliers to tackle
- K liers identified and th 1 .
D tortad v oo with climate change cnd. reduce our own impact
our Supplier Code through more sustainable packaging,

logistics and products.

;9 % Percentage of identified key suppliers
aligned with our Supplier Code

of our identified key suppliers are
aligned with our Supplier Code

KPI
% of identified key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code

FY30 Target . .
80% of key suppliers are aligned with i?:hsgipl'ﬁ; K(]:‘fdn;gqcy
our Supplier Code PP o

Ongoing Focus

- Continue to ensure alignment of
key suppliers with Supplier Code

- Align our Supply Chain Policy and
processes with our net zero targets

- Build our understanding of supplier
emissions




Tackling Emissions and Waste

To be net zero across our operations
by 2040 and net zero across our value
chain by 2050 at the latest.

2022 Highlights

- Emissions flat, excluding the impact
of new acquisitions during the year,
despite strong organic growth

- Waste measured for the first time

- Business-driven initiatives

Total Scope 1and 2 emissions

Tonnes CO,e

Emissions KPI

% reducticn of Scope 1 and 2
emissions {tonnes CO,e) ogainst FY22
baseline (10,615 tonnes CO,e}

Waste KP!
% of total waste to landfill

FY30 Emissions Target
50% reduction of Scope
1& 2 emissions on FY22 baseline

FY30 Waste Target
Less than 15% waste to londfil

Ongoing Focus

- Set SBTI net zero target

- Build internal knowledge of
Scopes 1, 2& 3

- Divert waste from landfill

- Set out a clear rcadmap to
our 2030 targets

We are committed to net zero emissions
across our value chain by 2050 at the latest,
We have set an interim 50% reduction target
for our own operations by FY30. We are
currently calculating our Scope 3 and wiill

submit our net zero targets for verification
by the SBTi in FY23.

Lo
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FY22 Fy2i FY20

Treere loee Goef 3,256 _ o
rees T e ,r 7,359 < Tk

. 10,615 .5 7%

Tonnes CO,e per £1m revenue

10.5

2022 10.5
202 12.5
2020 8.0

Gross emissions

10,615

2022 10,615
2021 2,825
2020 4,53

Purchased electricity kWh

14,033,971

2022 14,033,971
200 13,947,147
2020 7,762,447



DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

CASE STUDY

Packaging

Packaging initiatives are being put in place
aeross the Group. For many businesses, the
focus has been on creating a maore circular
packaging systerm.

Some businesses have invested in shredding
rmachines in order tc reuse incoming
cardboord pockaging as packing material
for outgoing orders, Other businesses have
focused on removing non-recyclable
elements from their packaging by replocing
plastic tape with paper tape - removing
rmore than a tonne of plastic for their
customers. Another scheme has completely
removed branding from all packaging. By
working closely with our suppliers to have
products delivered in plain, cardboard
boxes, preduct packaging can be reused by
our businesses and custorners.

All of these initiatives support our ambition
to reduce our waste-te-landfill and overali
waste. It also supports our customers in
achieving their own net zero and waste
reduction initiatives.
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CASE STUDY

Facility upgrades

During FY22, our European Life Sciences business,
Simonsen & Weel, moved into a new location that
penefits from maore efficient heating and cooling,
solar panels, state-of-the-art insulation and electric
vehicle charging. The business also decided to
improve biodiversity in the surrounding area by

sowing wildflower meadows on its surrounding land.

yoday 216a10a3g R




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DELIVERS
IMPACT

48 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022




Our businesses deliver positive impact
through products and services that benefit
our society or environment. Growth initiatives
in these areas offer exciting commercial
opportunities and support our purpose.

Positive impact revenue is generated asross
all businesses fram the sale o products,
services and soluticns that berefit cur
seciely or environrment and suppart the
trommsition toa mans susteinable Tutore
Growth initiotives in these arzos sffer a key
opportunity 1o positively impact our
srakeholders.

There are MLge Sppotanitiog 1o o S
ir the scale of tra

create amones §

COON T, I

el=riric vehicie

imie rern e ntsle ane

Our busiresses clzo supply products that
suppoert heaithy and safe cornmonitics,
such oz the highly-stranded silicone cakle,
suppliec by our Controls Sector, that is used
in deficrilatare and ECG elzctiodes.

49 Diplama PLC Annual Report 2022

Ouir Lite Sriences businesses offer digrostic
sclutiors that make U quicker and ecsier
wlentity [ife-threatening disecses, ncluaing
cutting-edge tecknolagy that allows for
early detection £Res 1 1 s,
horms-testing ks “or remale communrities.

O VRO ceals business salls Auial seairg
selations anc tracemearked products
socarically desiared to provent fugithve

ermiasions.

Our decentralised maodel gives s tre aigility

aline o oppoartunities in theses new
ard fast growing end segrments an we wortk
with our suppliers and their industrigs 1o
innovate new, speciclisec products and
solutions.,

Qur gositive impact revenae streams are
an important comporent of our organic
growth stretegy and each Sector has
growth plans in place.

1oday sibaipng




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

" DIPLOMA DELIVERS
" RESPONSIBLY




Our Group purpose is to consistently deliver
value and reward our stakeholders by making
a positive difference to our colleagues, our
customers and suppliers, and our
communities. We are committed to fulfilling
our purpose in a way that is environmentally,
socially and ethically responsible.

DVR governance

Cur VR goverrance structure is lear and
refi=cts our decentralised model The Group
ks nsibsiity Acr providing direction
arvd sappart, ardthe Board bac sltirmate
cvarsiqrt and resoonsioiity for CVR aoross

the Group.

perfornance of tneil business and are given
Hexibility to privritise CVR foc s aress in line
weiths roatericnity 1o their busir aets
et al Grovp ard Sector leeel and the
ccutive team, which irclodes the Oroup
CED ard Sector CEOs, isespansible far
performancs wthie their arca of

resporsibiity.

in e with cor 20271 pledoe, DVR FFL are now
Mtegrateainty oo regular maragentent
reporting, incleding Bionraal apdotes on
cur erniss'ors. Oor busiresses report their
ermissions datc arterly to the Groug,
sebre iU Teviceexd by the senio
leam and racanaged for irng
the Sector leaoership tearr.
ssitive Inmpat e data i
i cach business one analyse
Cart G mianuerrent jep
onsidered o Leefu't
lirnate dri
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The role of the DVR Steering Comrittos,
which is chairec by the Group CED, izt

outlire Group strategy cgainst the DVR

frarneverk, set Oroup initistives o

targets, s.pport the Sectors and husinesser,

and moritor ard comimunicate progress.
The challengs o o decertralised bes ;
can ke to re cligrnrnent with Gra
otsectives and arive mearine’ ol progress.
Cormmuanicontion is hoy 1o the offeotivoness
of DVR mranagerent across the Group ard
CVE fostures o in regular intereal and
SLT cornnnemicationms,

Our Senior Leadership Tearm (5LT), whicn
includes busiress MDs, is updated quarterly

on DVR dunrg regalar ST wpdates from the

CEOD. They alss ctterd i depth sessions
with rmermbers of the DVR Steering
Cornrmittee to review performance and
DR governance, moceive apdates or VR

and policy changes. and shore
their sucoesses ane best wractices,

The Execative team is updated on DVR
along with the 51T but alss hold rrore
detailed sessions sianrually as part of 1he
Executive Meetings. Sector CEOs meet
Biznrually with the DVE Steerirg
Cormrmittes for a DWR Governan

tor disciess OVR otrate Eavelrnanae,
climate-zlated risks ard opportunities,
and review pregress ard initictives,

The Boord holds an annual DVR session 1o
review DV R strategy, abje ol
progress. Cimate rlated risk rmaragerment

is integratec inlo Oroup fsk Managsment.

1oday aibaiong




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINGED

Our DVR governance structure

Diploma PLC
Board &
Group CEO

DVR strategy &
framework \L

Group DVR
governance

DVR
Strategy
Committee

Reporting & Executive
performance team

Sharing resources,
tools, best practice
& support

!

Development of

DVR networks .
Business

< MDs&DVR
Committees

Oversight of DVR strategy &
performance

Oversight of climate-related
risks & opportunities

1

Sector & Group performance
against targets

Sector & business
governance and reporting

[dentification &
management of Group &
Sector climate-related risks

T

DVR perforrance and
initiatives

ldentification and
management of climate-
related risks




and targets

Our metrics

y1oday oiBajoinyg

Responsible business
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY

CONTINUED

Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD): o

U T

es)

ponse
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

RISK MANAGEMENT

1l

METRICS AND TARGETS

e o T LT L oLETT LT D T S LRI I T S S




Our policies and procedures
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING
OUR
PROGRESS

FINANCIAL KPls

We measure our performance against

a number of financial and non-financial
metrics which refiect how we are delivering
against our strategic objectives (as set out

on pages 22-33), our financial model (see page
22) and our ESG framework (see pages 34-57).

Organic revenue growth

Organic revenue growth is the Groug's
number one priority. We focus on
products and solutions which are
critical to customers’ needs, giving
resilience 1o revenues. We target
rrid-single digit organic growth

6%

Five-year overage

Reported revenue growth

We aim to defiver sustainable double-
digit growth through a combination
of organic growth and hign-quality,
value-enhancing acquisitions which
agccelerate our organic growth.

18%

Five-year compound

Adjusted operating margin

Our differentiated value-added
solutions and custemer-focused
approach drive customer loyaity
and crecte pricing power, supperting
sustainaole and attractive Mmargins.
We target o margin of 17%+.

179%

Five-year average

Adjusted EPS

EP% growth s @ measure of how
successfui we have been in groveng
argonicaly and through aoquisition,
mciLding capita’ aliocation and tax
considergtions. e torget aoube-digt
EPS growth.

17%

Five-year compound

Free cash fiow conversion

Aostrorg baance sheet ong casn How
fund ou regy anc provide
T ng anidenos. Vie target
free cosm Aowe comvers on of 907+,

6%

Five-year average

ROATCE

The rrcm o e - - . P -
PNE rness Ltes Tiove SuCessTul wee or2 Ot

ge-e gt g e

TG AT ThE Nl Trrents we

moee figtorget ROATCE Inthe migh teens.

20.2%

Five-year average

3 : = ey
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NON-FINANCIAL KPIs

CUR COLLEAGUES

Engagement index
An externally benchmarked score from our
anrual engogerment survey

TARGET
maintoin; O /o I
2 22

£

R

Lost time incident (LTi) rate
Number of LTls per 1,000 employees

% women on the Senior Management
Team (SMT)

TARGET FY30 TARGET

5% year-on-year reduction O()/
40%+

20 N 22 21 22

£
‘ 3 &

QUR ENVIRONMENT

% key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code'

FY30 TARGET

80%

of key suppliers aligned with
Suppiier Code by FY30

2522

59%

% of total waste to landfill % reduction of Scope 1& 2 emissions

ogainst FY22 baseline

FY30 TARGET

50%

reduction in Scope 1 &2
emissions

FY30 TARGET

<15%

waste to landfill

222 2022 maselne yaor)

0%

1 O I 1 5 tonnes CO,e

fre SPh el coppteerT weredar e Sornol tre

93uUDUIaAOD 3)olodio
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SECTOR REVIEW

CONTROLS
SECTOR
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The Controls

Sector

businesses supply
specialised wiring,
cable, connectors,
fasteners, control
devices and adhesives
for a range of

technically d
applications.

Windy City Wire {(WCW): 50%
Aleadimg value aaded
srmien auality
cabla anc wine,

Tert systoms gerarate
grificart time and cost
savings for customars,

Wire & Cable (UK): 9%
Specialst ard Hexitile cabie
products and cable
idertification, termination and
IManOgemert procucts, and
cable rmanagerment soivtions
across o oo &
castormers in Lurope.

Interconnect: 22%
Harness conponets snd
specialiet connectors Laed in
technically dernanairg
applcaticnrs across muliple
incustrics in Earops and t

. IES5Es SUDEy I Mang
of products zna value cad
services and products irzluding
protective sleeving, cut 1o
length tubing, kitting, connoctor
asombly ard prototype
zuantities of customised
rrulti core cables.

51 Diploma PLC Annucl Repart

emanding

Specialty Fasteners: 10%
SpecicHy, premiume-caality

0sl a togeth

soecificotion and other
woloe-adde
storners in

replznichrment salutions.

Fluid Controls: 6%

Fluid contrellers, corn

salves, termperature angd
pressure measurement devices,
ond specialised liguid dispensirg
camponents prinearily for
cstarmers in the LK Foas &
Beverage sector

Adhesives: 3%

specially siicores oshesives
leants ton :

rechnical support and ather

value-added sorvices,

2022

Revenue by segment’

Wirdy City Wire
et
speciaty o
e
Flaid Cartral:

Acironives

Revenue by geography’

58% Morth Armeric 2

23% UK

16% Cartinzntal Eaope
F 3% Other

Reported revenue (£m)

(compound growth over Sve yvears)

+30% p.a.

o
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“Qur International Controls
businesses have shown
trermendous energy in
building momentum - it’s
been great to see their hard
work pay off this past year.”

David Goode
Sector CEO, Controls

“It’s been another great year
for Windy City Wire thanks
to our great proposition,
winning culture and ability
to deliver for the customer.”

Rich Galgano
CEO, Windy City Wire

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FY 2022

FY 2021 Change in the year

Revenue

£492.8m

£3433m  +44%

Organic revenue
growth

+16%

+24%
Adjusted operating

et £105.8m

£72.4m +46%

Adjusted operating
margin

21.5%

211% +40bps

- Share gains in high growth end markets
and cormpeling custorner proposition
driving an excellent WCW performance:
organic revenue growth 32%, including
double-digit volurme growth

- International Controls organic growth
18%, with accelerating growth in
attractive end segrments while also
broodening US and Eurcpean exposure

- Product extension: excellent organic
growth in our new Adhesives business lire,
with a bolt-cn acquisition 1o add scale
and diversty end markets

Sector financial performance

International Controls - -+ -~ —--:

Tt v Do Wire &

Cable

ey

Interconnect -




Fluid Contr

ols -

i Adhesives 7

[P

Windy City Wire 10 ¢

CASE sTUDY
High growth end
markets

Our Adhesives business delivered »20%
organic growth, helped by exposure to high
growth end markets. Qur products and
solutions have many applications, including
in electronic control units for electric and
autonomous vehicles and for waterproofing
connections as part of alarge scale fibre
optic rell-out in the UK by a maior
telecornmunications company.

Read more
diplermaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/
controls

0
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SECTOR REVIEW




The Seals Sector
businesses supply a
range of seals, gaskets,
cylinders, components
and kits used in heavy
mobile machinery and
a diverse range of fluid
power products with
Aftermarket, OEM

and MRO applications.

International Seals: 47%

Our Seals businesses v Eurspe
anz Australion supply seals,
gaskeis, purnps ond r2lotec
accessores, custorn-moulded
and machined parts, hydraulic
cylinder componerits, and a
diverse rarge of fluid power
prodiicts 1o Afwermarket, OEM
ard MRO custonsers

North American
Aftermarket: 23%
Supplies a variety of seals,
gererally ona next day bosis,
for a broad range of maokile
machinery ssed in heovy
Construction, Mining and
Agriculture. Froducts ore used
in repair ano rnaintenance ofter
t b rpeted itz
warranty pedod or been
sle on the pre-used market
Custoniers are rmainly regair
shops, enging and transmission
1ebuilders ard other hecvy
equiprnert parts distribLtors

US Industrial OEM: 18%
Supplies seals, gasket:, G rings
and custome-rnaaudded and
rrachined parts. The business
works closely with customers to
specify the most appropricte
seal desigr, material and
manufacturer for the
apslicotion, provides technical
sLpport during procuct
development; ana delivers the
fegistics copabilities 1o supparnt.
wrrall v rmedicam-sized
production runs.

US Maintenance, Repair &
Overhaul (MRO}: 12%
Cor MRO business, VaP
lechnologies (VSF), supplies
high quality gashets and Huid
sealing products o aritical

i in high-cost-of faiure

s, Tre business works

directly with cusleaners to
Improwe sealing pedoamiance,
providing expartise, product
recormmmendations and trairing
WoP sells primmarily 1o
trensosrtation, chemical
pracessing, power and rmarne
customers,

&%  Diplorma PLC Annual Report 2022

Revenue by segment’

International Seals
M Aftermarket
U tndustrial OEM
US MRO

Revenue by geography’

#& 50% North America
37% UK &LEurope
13%  Internationa

Reported revenue (£m)

{compound growth over five vears)

+11% p.a.

22 331.4

0]
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“The team has been the
standout highlight of my
first year - they've shown
great leadership in driving
growth in a tough supply
chain environment. I'd like
to thank them all for their
commitment.”

Ted Messmer
Sector CECQ, North American Seals

2022 was a transformational
year for International Seals:
we've welcormed around 400
new colleagues from R&G
and other businesses and
enter the year ahead better
positioned than ever.”

Alessandro Lala
Sector CEQ, International Seals

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022

FY 2021

Change in the year

Revenue

£331.4m

£263.7m

+26%

Organic revenue
growth

+14%

+7%

Adjusted operating
profit

£62.6m

£46.5m

+35%

Adjusted operating
margin

18.9%

17.6%

+130bps

- Geographic penetration: Louisvitle giving
access 1o previously untapped Western
and Midwestern states, driving
accelerated market share gains in North
American Aftermarket

- Diversification in growtn end segrments:
International Seals organic growth 1%
with broad-based growth against a
strong comparator

- Product extension: strategic acquisition of

R&G in April to build scale in the UK and

broaden the Seals product portfolio into
pneumnatics, expanding addressable

mnarkets

- Building scale: acquisition of ACT,
a supplier of innovative anti-corrosion
products and solutions, adds further scale
to the high quality platformm for growth
we have built in Australio over the last

three years

North Arr-\er-iccn Aftermarket




CASE STUDY

Product range
extension delivering
organic growth

P Strategic progress

RIS it B4

0]

MIIATBA
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Y10

Moday 216910438

New proprietary products helped to drive
organic growth of >20% in US MRO. The
business’s Service Equipment Rebuild Kits
{SERK™) provide custorners with technical
expertise and a kitting solution that saves
time and money, and reduces the total cost
of ownership. Sales of the kits tripled in
FY22, attracting new customers and driving
rnarket share gains.

Read more
diplomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/seals/
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SECTOR REVIEW

LIFE SCIENCES
SECTOR
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The Life Sciences

Sector businesses

supply a range of
equipment, consumables,
instrumentation and
related services to the
Healthcare industry.

Canada: 43% Europe: 36%

Qur market \cod\'mg Canadian Cur Irish & UK business

businesses suppdy clinical distributes leasing-edge

dizgnostics instrurnentation techinologies, foocused on

ard procducts, cnd specialty ;

surgical devices together witls and specialty medical devices.

relsted corsurmables and O Scandiravian businesses

servites to public hospitals, supply dovices, eguipment

i clinics and pathology and patient moritoring

abxoratories. lechnclogies used inoperating
theatres as well as medically

Australasia: 21% sopervized rutrition.

Aleading supplier of

instrumentation ang

cansumatiles to the pathalogy,

scientific rescarch ard rmedical

scgments. Opercting in

Australio and New Zealand, the

bisincesss alsc suppely specialkst

surgical equipment and

cersumabiles wsed in hosaital

operating roems,

6% Diplorma PLC Annual Repart 2022

sbaratory dingrastics

Revenue by segment’

Testing & Diagnastics

Surgical
Gastreintestingl
COther healtbecare

Revenue by geography'

Canada
Lurops=
Astralio

Reported revenue (£m)
(compound growth over five vears!

+8% p.a.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Fr2022 _Fy 2021 Changein the year

- £188.6m £1804m  +5%
Organic revenue ( 4)% +‘| 4%

growth

Aguedoperstng EA10m £432m (5%

profit

Adjusted operating 21 _7% 23 9% (220) bpS

. . . margin
"Qur Life Sciences businesses 9
have done a great job of - Organic revenue growth was 2% - Strategic acquisition of Accuscience:
developing our product excluding last year's Covid-reloted increqses exposure to high growth testing,
. : . revenues and was moderated by hospital diagnostics and medical segments;
Plpellne., fOCUSII"!g on . staffing shortages; returned to organic continues the bulld out of our European
innovative products that will growth in 34 as expected footprint
improve patient outcomes - Strang diagnostics and endoscopy - Disciplined portfalio management:
s : : perforrmance disposal of al-envirosciences
and position us In h'gh - Sector well-positioned for growth: exposed
growth areas. Our prospects to rising diagnostics spend and significant
are excitjng_” elective surgical backlogs

Dan Brown
Sector CEQ, Life Sciences

Sector financiol performance
R N

- testing and diagnostics




CASESTUDY
Innovative products
driving growth

Strategic progress
N R LR it

yoday o16a3piyg

Akey highlight for the year was Life
Sciences’ success with Fuji CAD EYE™,

an innovative endoscope utifising Al
technology. Our team partnered with Fuji to
commercialise this cutting edge product,
which has been a huge success and an
important contributor to our strong
performance in endoscopy in the year,

Read more
diplormaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/
[ifesciences/
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
requires the Directors to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit

of the members as a whole, having regard
to the interests of stakeholders in their
decision-making.

Stakeholder engagement

LR How stakeholder interests have
- wn e o influenced decision-making

Dividend
Jne ot the or'ng pa decisions consceTed
ov tre Boa d aver The vear nias beer o

reia e oy e 1o shoranog

mterirm g send
Lr srorehoiders

3y & hio




OUR COLLEAGUES

How we engage '

Outcomes/actlon taken

o

OUR BUSINESSES

\_Nhy weieinguge

OUR CUSTOMERS

Why we engage

Q

MBIAIDA
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT
CONTINUED

OUR SUPPLY CHAIN OUR INVESTORS ENVIRONMENT
AND COMMUNITIES

art e e

Why we e}rgdgé - Why we engage

Ht';}n;;lﬂeie;grége

How we engage o ] ) B

How we engage

D Yt Rl L P PR R E U Lt S

How the Board engages N R R -

—_ S e -

R How the Boord en'gciig

es

How the Board engagés

B A T Outcomes/action taken o




CASE STUDY

Relocation of Abacus dx and
Big Green Surgical

This year, two of our Australian Life Sciences
businesses successfully integrated their operations
at a shared facility. The objective was to create
better operational efficiency and improve service
to customers and suppliers. Careful consideration
was given to colleague wellbeing, engagement
and career progression, including through interncl
communication, colleague consultation, and
openly addressing any concerns raised. The

move has improved employee engagement

and development, as well as Health & Safety.
The new facility also benefits from LED lighting,
better insulation and more efficient heating and
cooling systems.

A number of our businesses have been
recognised by their customers, suppliers
and colleagues this year.

Feefo Trusted Service Award '
at Shoal Group OWO r

Techsil won the Al

Distributor Awards for the fourth
year running from a major
supplier

Silver EcoVadis award at VSP
Technologies O/O

customer satisfaction at M Seals

51U3WA1DS |DISUDUIY

M Seals UK shortlisted in Filcon Electronics awarded best
Developing Future Talent 2021 European Distributor by a
Category for Make UK major supplier

Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022
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Q&A WITH OUR NEW CFO

Q

What are your priorities for
the year ahead?

“Our strong B e g erccres e
performance and Q
strategic progress i
in such challenging A T
circumstances are T
testament to our EeTe
outstanding TR
colleagues.” i e

Chris Davies coae T < I
CFO el LT e




FINANCIAL REVIEW

R - A I Attractive, high teens margins Effective tax rate broadly unchenged o
T TS AP ST {See table 2) L N B R IC IR <
R T R L R TR N PR 2

=

SR )

z

Financial highlights (5ce table 1)

Higher financing costs

e act o

modoy nibainayg

Profit before tax

= [ el

Double-digit organic growth

26% growth in adjusted EPS
and total dividen

goubuleaon aniodion

Table 1: Financial highlignts

Reported resalts Adjusted resulte
Fy Y FY Fy %o
2021 chonge 2022 2021 chonge

S3UBWSLBAS [DISUDU1Y

UOIIDWLION| JBYLD

027 202 bps

Frr chicnae % % chorge P Tt N N N B
R 21.5 - e e TR

S 189 oo .
N 217 e




FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

ROATCE: strong returns

Disciplined portfolic management

=i Strong balonce sheet

Liabilities to shareholders
of acquired businesses




Organic revenue growth

15%

Reported revenue growth

29%

Adjusted operating margin

18.9%

i T

{See tcbl‘é 3) o

nsion oblig FX tailwind and interest headwind

AR SRR AN

Employee pe

Free cash flow conversion

Q0%

largely offsetting

o

Net debt/EBITDA

Table 3: Composition of net debt

Ve Currency Amaount GEF equ.valent Inte-est ~ote exposuTe

Gross debt drown at year end

P T mr T e

o)

MPIAJDA
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is integral to
our strategic ambitions and provides a solid
foundation for our businesses to scale.

Qur approach

koo o e e

Our risk management

framework DIPLOMA PLC

Top down

The Group manages
horizen scanning for
emerging risks, review
of principal risks,
internal controls,
processes and risk

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

management
AUDIT COMMITTEE frarmeworks
EXECUTIVE
TEAM
Bottom up

Qur businesses
continually identify
LOCAL MANAGEMENT TEAMS risks and Qpportunities
to feed into sector and
Group risk reviews

OUR BUSINESSES




Risk appetite Emerging risk  Description o
A Techru_)\ogy A A b

B evolution T : <

B T e e o L T T B L O N

. 3

Climate change

Digitaiisation

Identifying and monitoring
material risks

1oday o1barong
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s decentralised operations, which
have different Sectors and geographical
spread, helps mitigate the potential impact
of these principal risks.

Principal risk Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Adverse cnonges in the major markets
tnat tne businesses operate in can rasult
in sowing revenue growth due to reduced
o delayed de~and for products arg
serv {es, of Magin pressures due to
incregced competition.

Downturn/instability
in major markets

Risk category

Mocrosexterna rsk

Board risk appetite

Averse

Change in risk

O

Thig s rey ime 3t s il ove Toooot

searand < addr

Tigk mana s e

- Ahigrpeonotor o

The businesses identdy «oy marker drive-s
and montor trends and forecasts, as wet
as maintaining cose e atiensnins vwith ke,
customers whe Moy Give an 83Ty waming
of slowing demand.

A number oF craracterstcs of the Groun's
busimesses modercte the mpact of
2conom e 909 Dus ne
- The Group's bu
differe-t Se
charoctenistics

Qgesgraphic MaTeos,

I

S CvCies:
Lec ooerarte - tnres
aifrerans

[olaloNotade SN o ol olatsiilend

A
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Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Supply chain

Risk category

Strategic risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

©

Supely chaoin disruption has reduced
since st year but operational
inter-upTions at custcmers and supphers
cortnue.

The apil ty to service our customers in o
timely rmanner is o key pa-t of our value
added proposition

For manufacturer-oranded products,

there is the risk tnat existing distribution
agreements and vertical integration of
suppliers is concelled, therefore losing aczess
to key distribution channels.

There s aisg tne risk of:

Asupphor taking away exciusivity.

- Manutacturing iead tmes increasing as
a result of supply chain shartages. We
have experienced this, particularly with
supphers based in Asig, it the current
yeor,

- Suppiv chain partners not eperating to
the same ethical standards as Diploma.

Manogement cont.nuests pursue
dversification strategies and regularly
seeks cltermative sourcing.

Long-term, multi-year exclusive contracts
have been signed with suppliers with
change of control clouses, where
opplicab.e, for pratection or compensation
n the event of acquistion.

We martain g1-ong relaticnships with
suppliers and keep customers updated N
ne event of change to retain key business.

Meeting witn key customers regularly
w0 gain insight into their product
requirerrents and marxet developiments.

We vwark with our supply chain partners

te heip thern meet our standords of
acceptable working conditions, financic!
stability, ethice and technical comgetence.
If they are unab'e to meet these standards
then we wik source product elsewhere.

Inflationary
environment

Risk category
Macrosoxternal nisk

Board risk appetite

Coutious

Change in risk

®

Sigruficant or unexpected cost increases by
supzlers due 1o the poss througn of higher
cormrmodity prices or other price increqses,
higher trade toriffs and/or foreign currency
fluctuations, coud adversely impact profits
if businesses are unaole 1o poss oM suem Cost
INCredses 10 CUSTOMeTs,

A rumber of characteristics of the Groug's
businesses moderate the impact of
economic and business cycles:

- The Groug's businesses operate in three
difterent Sectors with differernt
cnaracieristics and acrass o number
of gecgrophic markets.

businesses offer specalised products

and services, which a-e often specific 1o

their gpplication, ncreosing customers’

NG COLs.

A ngn proportion of he Group’s revenue

comigrses consumanle products, which

- lrormary coses the roducts are weed 1n

mrtenance ond ref k

2rrent

0]

MBIAIBA,
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

COMTINUED
Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation
Unsuccessful Dioloma nas a strong history of disciplined A clearly defined acquisition strotegy
. .. acausitions. The business modet of the is in place with o discipiined approach,
ClchISltlon Grour is bosed on successtul ocguistions in inciuding financial return hurdles, to
iarge and developed markets and sectors. bringing high-quaiity, value-enhancing
Risk category Businessas inta the Group.
Strategic risk The following are the key risks of an
acquisition process: An experienced Corporate Developrent
Board risk appetite - The Group may overpay for @ target. tearm is responsible for seeking and !
Tolerant - The acquired business may expenence evalugting new acguisition opportunities

Choange in risk

S

The acquisition pipeline rermains
healthy and Diplorna retains its
disciplined approach to Eringing
nigh-guatity, value-=nhancing
businesses ino Dip'oma.

limited growth post acguisition.

- Loss of key customers or suppliers post
integrotion.

- PFotential cultursl michit os smailer
hLsinesses are faced with the new
recuirernents of al sted Coampany,

The above may be the resuit of inodeguate
duediligence, noor ntegratisn or unreaiistic
ossampticns used N the Imvestrment case.

with the Corporate Development Director
reporting 1o the CEC,

A forma’ due diligence process is followed i
for every acguisition. with close supervision

by the CEO and relevant Group senior

management. A formal governance

process s 0 place wp to Boord levei.

A disciphned post-acquisition integration
Brocess covers operatonal, inancial,
goveraance, iegal and reporting natters.
Tre Board reviews performance of recent
Gcquisiticns annualsy.

Geopolitical disruptions

Risk category
Macrofexternal risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in Risk

@®©

This r'sik remaing elevoted in certan
geographies, inciuding dueg toc onga’tg
e.erts susn g the co~f et in Ukrone

Dloloma operates © estabiis~eg soonsmies

with stabie po

oland ega systers.

Deospo tica eve~ts tiot could dsrupt the
ot
5 .

TeLR's CGperstions are mainly related
- mterrLption of trade ogreements,
Tar¥s
- Change o tade reigtionships amaongst
Coartries in v o e Lperate

Lo e el

We contoue to diversify ou- supply base
and 'nvest TN product range devecpment
o rritigote exposure 1o ary single manet
cr region

Wnsnever possible, we caprtalise or Group
synerg.es and everaGe Inte -Ccompany
t-ading



Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation
< wOOs + e 1 I r
Heaq |th & Scfety Sorme Diploma businesses are exposed to Tre Covid 19 panderr ic placed ¢ greate:
Health & Safety risks, inciuding via the focus on Heclth & Safety and preventivi
Risk cotegory environment in which tneir employess, rmeasures 1o imit the spread o f Covid-19.

contractors, customers, and suppiiers

Operationg! risk
! operate, or through the products they sell.

Beard risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

@

Relotive to FYZ21 there has been g
signicant decrease in Health & Safety
risk as = resdit of the conciusion of the
Covid-19 pandemic and Improvemerits
i processes arising from the pandemic.

Implementing ond continuously evolving
these measures has improved Health &
Satety across the Soup.

Additionclly, management continues to
pronote mental healtn and welloeing,

offenr‘g supnort to colleagues and access

to on emplovee gssistonce programre,

Technology & cyber

end critically on t\me\y and reliable
ormation from their T systems to run
their businesses and serve treir customers'

Group and aperating business ranagement
d epe
ig}

Risk category
Operational risk

neads,
Bourd risk appetite
Catios ppe Any disruption or denial of service may
) delay or impact decision-making if reliab.e
Change in risk data s unavailable,

Poor infarmation handling or interruption
af hiusiness may also lead 1o reduced service
to customers. Unintended actions of
erpployees caused by a cyber-attack may
alss lead to disruption, including fraud,

=t cvber-ottacks -emained wugh

1EniEs T toined o nigh
e DETsRCLrity whilst
Ia71m g remnate working
tones where strict
rere i ploce o8 ¢ respTnie

J-19 par dem'e

The decentraiises noture of 1the Group
tand- alone | e for eafﬁ
its the potent'a mpact to any
There s good support
ot ioca! T systerms

individud
and back-up buitt
Al businesses ir the Hroupn hove ¢ robust
cybersecutity Lrogiamme ana e regularly
€NgOgE v tN Cynersecu ity @xperts 1o
contimuoushy (Torave gnd strengthen ou

T gyeterrs,

£ formanzed Er\

‘r'v'\'*\er—* =

o)
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation
The success of the Group < bLilt on strong, Cortrociual terms such as notice periods

Talent & diversity

ang non-covoete clauses can mitigate
the -isk in T2 Smort terrm,

self-standing management teams in the
operating businesses, cormmutted to the
success of their respective businesses.
As aresult, the loss of key personnel can
have an impact on performmance for

a limited time period.

Risk category

werational risk L
The Greup places very high importance

on slanning developrnent, motivation

and rewarch

- Ensuring o chalienging working
environment where managers feel tney

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk Not having the right taient or diversity

@®©

This nisk has increased ir the year, mainly
due to current rmarket inbour conditions
ot the tightening of lobour markets
affecting candidate o vailonility ond
retention, pword pressore on wage
evels In cetoin geographies and
changing expectations of warking

ey roaents.

at a'llevels of the organisation to deliver
Qur strategy, resulting in reduced fingncial
performance.

nove control over, and responsibiity for,
Their businesses.

- implementing o structured talent review
Grocess for the ceveloprrent, retention
and sucoesson oF key persannied,

- Offering palenced and competitive
campensaticn pacsaqes with o
comibnation of so ary, anndd Donus ard
ong-term cash o snare incantive mlors,

- Greing theg freedo, encouragement,
finarcia resources and sTroteqic supnornt
for manasers 12 pursue amibitious
Zrow Tt Crans,

o)

Product liability

Risk category

Derational sk

Board risk appetite

ETSE

Change in risk

Trareis o rsk that orod

Srows business reay fai

tssunnlied oy a
rnoservice, which

coulz lead to o ciair under groduct iabiiit,.

The Group may pe exposed 1o legal coste
and potentiar domages i the claim
succeeds ond the suoplier foils to meet 1s
liabiities for whatever reason

im s tugtion:s where 2 Groop bus—ess s

ic T by guainhied peret tne and oo
: [ erswe orodut

creclLreents, The Orour

e requ’res 1o undertove

assessrren

and comprenen

QITLIGNCE QE0RT




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Foreign currency

Risk category
Francial risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

"nis rick has rernained ot a similar jeve!
10 last year.

e Group is exposed 1o two types of
Ananciaf sk causea by currency volatility:
trans:ational exoosure, on transfating the
results of overseas subsidiories inte UK
sterling: and tronsactional exposure, due 1o
operating businesses’ revenues or product
cwsts being denorminated in a currency
other thon therr loca: currency.

Transictional Toreign exchange risk arises
prirranily with respect to the US dallor, the
Canadian dollar, the Australian dellar and
he Euro

A strergthening of UK sterfing by 10%
aganst all the currencies in which the Groun
does business, would reduce adjusted
operoting profit by approximately £17.0m
(9%, due to currency translation. Similarly,
¢ strengthening of UK sterling by 10%
against a4 the nen-UK sterling capital
ermployed would reduce shareholders’
by L31.6m (9%,

funds

Transact anal foreign exchange risk orises

princpally with respect 1o US doliars and

Eurce. The majority of the Group's Conadian

and Australian businesses’ purchases are

denomnated in US dellars and Euros. The

€ LS businesses do not have ary
foreign currency tronsactionai risk.

3
naternia

The Group operates across a number of
diverse geograpnies but does not hedge
tramslational exposure of operating profit
and net assets.

The Group's businesses may hedge up to
80% of forecast (for a maximurm of 18
rmorths) foreigr currency transactional
exposures using forward foreign excharge
contracts.

Rolding monthly forecasts of currency
exposuras are reviewed on o regular pasis.

Details of average exchange rates used in
the transiation of overseas earnings and of
year end exchange rates used in the
translation of overseas balance sheets, for
the princingl currencies used by tha Group,
are show in note 26 16 the consolidatad
finoncial statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Non-compliance
with laws

Risk category
Opergtional risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

@

Laws governing businesses continue

t¢ increase in volume, scope and
complexity. As the Group scales,
businesses are increasingly sub’ect te the
reguiations of multiple jurisdictions thot
rnay not all align with one anather,

Our businesses are facing a large number
of reaulatory changes over the corming
vears in respect of enviranmental

comrmitments and controls,

The Group’s businesses are affected oy
various statutes, regulations and standards
in the countries ano markets in which they
operate. Diploma PLC itself (s a isted entity
subject to regulation and governance
requirerments.

The board of each business is accountable
for identifying and monitoring what faws
are reievant 1o their business, ‘ncluding any
emerging or changing legiskation, and for
ensuring commercial legal risks are
appiopriately managed.

The Head of Legal advises on legislative
and regulatory changes relevant to the
Croup s aiisted company and has
oversight of all -naterial transactions
including acguistions.




VIABILITY STATEMENT -
DIPLOMA PLC

In accordance with the UK Corporate B S
Governance Code, the Directors have e Ime gl /
assessed the viability of the Group over

a three-year period to 30 September 2025,
which is a longer period than the outlook
required in adopting the going concern
basis of accounting.

MBIAIBAQ
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CHAIR’S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Compllunce wn:h the UK Corporqte Governance Code

CTINCiples ar
cith e o
cortritnt
roplooe T enzlre corslianr
SPT T et By
proven,

ot gl

Principies of the UK Corporate More information
Governance Code 2018

Bourd Ieudershlp und company purpose Read rore an pags
Cipiormais Ctive m\i
curmmitted B
leang terr sust: e s
ry.‘rer;m'r‘-g s for sharehoslders
slgers, and cxetributing to

Division of responsibilities Fead more on po
. of T2 Chair ard tne Grous CEO
jrmr ond there @ On appropriate
and Indaependert

Food more (,-rrwip: o e
108 1 113,

ace for the Board
and serior nne Sl evaluat on ot
o Beord ard it committees is undertoker
sanualiy inire with the Ja

Sl

Audlt risk und mterncl control Read rore oo
{ 102 1o 107

Remuneratlon
FEelate| fx,;,
t= oattr

PLT érrlcl Seport 2007




Dear Shareholder,

On beha f of the Boord, 1 am delignted

10 present the Comipany’s Corporate
Gevernance Report far the year ended

30 Soptember 2022, wricr ‘s moy, first report
as your Chair. One of the responsipilities of
my role as Chair s to premote and cverses
the highest standards of corporate
governance within the Boord and across
the Group. The Boord piays a critical role
in ensuting thot every port of owr Group
cenducts ite ousiness in a manne” which
is consistent with ethica stongards
appropriate to a responsinle corporcte
citizer. A sauno corporate governance
fra-newon with the ngnt systens and
contrais s key to ensuring sustainable
IONg-err. sUCCess; w& are a'so very
consciaus that effective governance s net
purely o matter of requiatory complionce
but encompasses many issues inclading
operstng with integnty ond honesty,
cromoting diversity and enaoling petver
decision-moking througn inclusion 1o
ensure wi baiance the needs of ai
stakehoiders and operate in ¢ far ang
transparent manner,

Tris yvear will be the 20th anniversary of

the punlzation of the Codbury Comretice's
lerort On CorperGte overnan
foundng zocument For 1o
Corporate Governance Code tme Cads),
The report highiignted the irmportance of an
effecti.e board 'n creating ans rraintgining
good carporcte governance and set out the
fLmem@'\t@S of good governance weieh
remain in the curemt Code. As the
environmment i7 wh'ch C"‘rp""*'tﬂ ctzer:
operate has evorved and our Group has
continued 1o grow N scae anid © 'r\.p exity,
we have cortinued to develop o

u\f:

what cansttutes good aovernance wit"': a

.

particular focus on stakenn ders,

sustaina’lity, ang I0ng 1erm vaLe CreGC .

“The high standards of
corporate governance
underpin everything
we deliver.”

Tne Board is very conscious of the role it
clays in ensuring that Diploma operates in g
manner which is consistent with the highest
standards of corporcte governance. The
canden'c hos accelerated the evalution in
the approaches of sharehoiders and other
stokenoders to these and broader Topics.
Financial performance is no longer the sole
gmd%"ng reason for a corporation, instead it
must consider its pioce and role in society,
its resilience and its akility tc create vaiue
aver tirme for o wide range of different
stokeholders. Throughout the last few vears,
we hove deveioped our approoch and
thinking around sharehoiders ond
stakeholders, how we copture their views
and detiver therr interests. A core elerment
of this is the work that the Boord has done
over the year to ensure thot Diplorra
contributes to wider society through
sustginabie, long-terrr practices as well as
through our Delivering value Respeonsibly
(DVR]) torgets. Further inforrration on our
sustginability programmes can be found on
pages 42 to 53, We have also comtnued to
evolve and embed our DVR progromme
throughaut the Group. Insights from our
OVR programme have been used to informr
steps taken by the Board, exscutive
managenent and our businesses to
rrorove the efficency of systerns and
LrOCESLes w Hhythe (:L)_h of further
aTpowering our coleagues, increasng
ogitty and speed in execution and
anhancing oca. occountakbiiny,

tHective leadership and cptirnas colieague
engagement aepends on o heaithy,
EMPOWEres and posTive busmness culture.
doa has o strong purpose. set of vaiues
and coneswe caltural fundarmentals whicn
govern our actions and provide g uidance
U voried businesses even ir recent
“hallenging times. The importance of
culture has been particaicriy acute ths year
z¢ our codeogues continued to odapt to
A WyE of work’ no. Further detc’ls on how
oQ s Nas ronitored anc acssssed
re can be tourd on page 79,

i
o
M
t; [_tl

Soeowil contnue to refine ond deveop our
Lesey, 1O ensLTE rCDuE “tress

L.Uuua’ﬁ oot

—

1he Zrodn

Board succession and eveluation
Board successicn rerriains a «ey area
of octivity and focus, Following the
reticement of Johin Nichclas ot our Annua
Genero Meeting (AGM) on 19 Jonuary 2022,
rassumed the role of Chor of vour Board
Barbarz Gibbes stepped cown a5 CFG an
30 September 2022, and Chris Davies waos
appowmed 10 the role on 1 Novernper 2022
Anne Thorourn and Andy Smith are due to
retire prior to the 2024 AGM and therefore
the Boord has commenced the process of
seeking suitable candidates tc take over
ther Committee Charr positions. The Board
is keersv gware of the need for diversity and
nzlusicn, which is a key LO'r'rJonomt of the
Group's DVR programme, The Board wil
continue 1o set the right condtions and
ead by exarmple thicugh ts oxn gporosch
1o inclusicn and diversity across its
composition: further imtormration can be
found irour Nomiration Zomimitiee Report
o0 poges 108 1o 13,

A ey aspect of good governarce s forthe
Board ta cr ‘ticaily self-analyse itself, its
members and Cormrr'ttees, ir order to
continualy improve its effect veness. The
Board caries out efectveriess reviews
an~ucily, and in FY22 175 was sndertaken

interncly 7 line with the Code. This
ev-:l\u':niom has a'so enabled the Board
dentify opportunities for 1 to further

rmprove ts effectiveness; addions’ detail
om tne evoiuot’'or resuiits and areas of
agreed focus can be found on poge 113

The Board's priorities for 2027 remain
consistent, with a continuad focus on the
rnpiermentation of the Grous stroteqy:

enali ienging and empowenng ronageTent;

succession panning and management of
rigk. Your Board s wel piazed toexecute ts
stewardship role 1o ersure that the Group
continues 1o evaive, scale ond deiver

-m sustainable growth. We ' aise
uete oe quwe, adagting our 1 nkeng
d priorties and promoting the Sterests
of our investors, emprovees and other
stakenoloes over the :c'T.'m1 YEOTE.

e AOW il me netd o 18 Jonuary 2023
ope That as sharens Jers in the Cormpuany,
vou vl be abile o attend foomeet
SOUnNy Tatier s
~turure suce

Aithitng

=f the Group.

David Lowden
Chair
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GOVERNANCE AT A GLANCE

Ethnic diversity Gender diversity Length of tenure

100% MNon ethric = orit T 57% Mcle 57% -3 years
43% Fernale 14% 34 vyears
29% 69 vears

Skills and experience
B2B. Industrial & Distit 1= st 000000
Retall and FMCG Sec o ' YY Y
Financial and Risk Won s e F Y Y Y Y
Operations 00000
Custorner Service . . . . .
Health & Safety Y Y

Strotegy 000000
M& A/Financing ' YY YY)
International Busincss 0000000

r
»

Ay
Tap
Avgy

..r.'
ar,
Tay

v.,"f’av.'.

AP,
&y,

Board and Committee attendance FY22 (as at 30 September 2022)

TaY,
Tay
“Fay

)

Member Board Audit Committee Nomingtion Committee Remuneration Committee

-.‘
av,
Cayay

Tay
&V,
¥y

David Lowden 8/8 - a4 6/6

avir,
L d

",

.l'll L 71
Sap 0 T4V,

John Nicholas 3/3 e —

~vap
)
o d

sy

s

Johnny Thomson 10/10 i - -

Barbara Gibbes /9

Anne Thorburn 10/10

Andy Smith 10/10

Geraldine Huse 10/10

Dean Finch' 9/10

1 Daan Tinch waas cnaiple oot o0 0 T

Changes to the Board
- John Nicholas stepped dowrn frorm 1o Zeaeid Loeeder - Barbarz Oibbes stepped down from the
Board on 19 January 2022, : 2ard e Board on 30 Septermber 2022,

Beard activity and focus area

2 . 20 75

wrrotegy and strategic ex=c. tior S sl gt Operations
swes and Culture it Governance

72 Diploma PLC Anrocl Renart 20077




Qur governance framework

Tre Board comprises the Chalr, Executive Directers and Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is responsicle for the performance and
‘ong-terrn success of the Company, including heolth and safety, leadership, strategy, voes, standords, controfs and risk Mmaroagenent.

David Lowden

p

Audit Committee
Chair: Anne Thorburn

Oversees and monitars the Company’s
financial statements, accounting
processes, audit {internal and external),
internal controls systerms and financial risk
management procedures. Also monitors
the effectiveness of the internal audit
function and reviews the external auditor
independence and performance.

See more on pages 102 to 107.

Treasury Committee

Provides oversight of treasury activities in
implernenting the treasury policies
approved by the Board.

el crFormntion ot vy -

Anne Thorburn

Group Company Secretary

e Ane

D TS HINL o S e

Board Committees

Nomination Committee
Chair: David Lowden

Reguiarly reviews structure, size and
composition of the Board and its
Committees. ldentifies and nominates
suitable candidates to be appointed to the
Board. Leads the Board's succession
planning and keeps the senior lecdership
needs of the Group under review.
Oversees the developmeant of a diverse
succession pipeline.

See more on pages 108 to T13.

Administration Committee

Conducts general business
administration on behalf of the Company
within clearly defined limits delegated by

the Board and subject to the matters
reserved ta the Board.

o -

Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Remuneration Committee
Chair: Andy Smith

Reviews ond recommends the framework
and policy on Executive Director and
senior management remuneration.
Reviews workforce remuneration policies
and alignment with culture.

See more on pages 114 to 138.

Disclosure Committee

Oversees the disclosure of market
sensitive information.

LT ey e CRT

Executive Directors

R el T I R

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

/\7, e— e =

— R |

IR NV

Executive team

-
r
7
‘
'
]
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Senior Leadership Tea

yloday 216330018

O
o
=
o
o
-
Q
fagd
2]
o
o]
<
m
=
3J
]
2
[4]
m

SIUBLIBLNLG [DIDUDULY

UOIIDWIOU| J3YLO




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

David Lowden
Board Chair & Nomination Chair

Joined
Octobe- 2027

Current external appointments:

- Seror independent Director,
Morgarn Sindal

- Choir, Copita =.C

Relevant skills and experience:

- Industrial and Cestribution Sectors
- Frnoncial and Risw F‘/‘Icmoge*‘r\(y"+
- Operslion:
- Strotegy

- MBS gna & 3

- internaticn.o 5 Jsiriess

Past appointments:
Crair, PageGrous plc
Senior indenende~t Director,

and Cace % W e
- CwetExec .t ve, 7

Johnny Thomson
Chief Executive Officer

Joined
February 2019

Current external appointments:

Mone

Relevant skills and experience:

3B industricl, Distribution and Servica
Sectors

Froncial and Risk Managerrent
Srerctions and Custommer Service
Srsteay

MEL and Faanang

nternaticna Busness

~

Past appointments:

1'aup Finance Director,
Compass Sroup L
“eq:ona: Money mg Director, Latin

Lreorien Carmoose Groun PLC

Chris Davies

Chief Financial Officer

I

Joined

S 20727

Relevant skills and experience

Sorg oo PR Sectore

Anne Thorburn
Senior Independent Director & Audit Chair

Joined

Secteminer o

-

o]

Current external uppointmentS'
- Non-Executve Directar an~d Chaor of the
Audit Commrittee, TT E SRRl S

n(

Relevant skills and expenence'
228 Industria ard Manufact

- Finaneat and Fsk Management

- Strateqy

- M&A gnd Financing

- nterngticnal Bus.ness

Past nppomtments.
~ief Finand'a "‘f“rn’ Sxova OroLp o
- Groug Finarce D rec*fr

Past uppomtmerrts




Andy Smith
Independent Non-Executive Director
& Rermnuneration Chair

Joined
February 2015

Current external appointments:
- MNone

Relevant skills ond experience:

- Heolthcare, Retal, FMCG and Utilities
sectors

- Cperations, HR and Cust

- Strategy ond R'ss Mano q
Sustainabiity, Diversity £q “Tv & it
and Hea'th & Safety
imternationa Busness

mer Ser\/ce

usion

Past appointments:
- Managing Director, Severn Tent Services

- Water Services Drector, Severn Trent pic
Group HR Directer,
Tme Beots Company PLO

- Custemer, Retal and Technclogy Directer,
Severn Trent po

87 Uiooones PO Snmoe Repe ot 2022

Geraldine Huse
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined

Jonuany 2020

Current externol oppointments-
- Presigent, Procter & Gamble. Conoda

Relevunt skills oand experience:
tand "MCO Sectors
Custome Saryce
- Sales ard Marketing
- Diversity, Eguity & inciusic
- Organsa
- imternotional

IV E DD

Past appountments'
Chie*® Erecut've
Furope

Crar ot the insttute of Gion
Uistroution

e "
Lentta

John Morrison
Group Company Secretary
& Head of Legal

.Ioined

v HE

v
“\> PRSP

Committee membership
IE] Rerrune aticn
Audit

Dean Finch
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
May 2021

Current external appointments:
Group Chief Execative, Persimmmon PLC

Relevant skills and experlence'
B2B Industricl, Services and Retall Secters
- Financiol and Risk Marncgement
- Uperations arnd Customer Service
- Healtn & Scfety
- M&A and Financing
- Strotegy
- irverrational Buaness

Past appomtmentS'
- Chief Executive Ctficer,
National Exprass Group pic

- Zroup Cheet Executive, Tube Lines

- Growe Binance Director & Group Chiet
Dperarng Sthicer, FirstGroup pic

Company Secretary
iohn ‘s ~espons.ble

ee,
ate QoveTnEnie
zcdures are it
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board s responsible to s—areholders for ROLES IN THE BOARDROOM

the Group's fingncial ond operational

pe-formance, Hisk rmanagement, cuture,
and is collectively respansinle for premoting
e long tery success of e Groug.

Tre Board is ~espons’bie for monitoring
progress made against strategic objectives,
approving proposed actions ond ensuring
that the appropriate internal controls are
place and that they are cperating effect-vely.

There s a formal schedule of matters
reserved far the Board which sets out the
structure under which the Board manages

Non-Executive Chair

15 responsinilites, providing guidance on
rove it discharges ite autherity and
anaaes the Board's ootivities. The Bowrd
s assisted by three prind committees
fALdit, Norranation and e uneratior
whicr s responutie for review
fing with rmatters wthn s own
rerrns of reference

Matters reserved for the Board

The Board has a forrnal schedule of
matters reserved for its decisions:

purpose, strategy and management
values, culture and stakeholders
mermbership of the Board and other
appointments

financiol and other reporting and
controls

audit, risk and internal controls
contracts ond caopital structure
communication

remuneration

delegation of authority
corporate governance and other
rmaotters




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MONITORING CULTURE

Purpose, culture and values How the Board monitors culture
The Boord is responsible for ensuring thot
he Gire up achieves its DUrpose, which s 1o
corsizrently deliver value and reward 1te
stokeholders oy making o difference 1o our
coleagues, custorers and communihies,
reLicwing and crsaring the inrolernentstio
of e Group's strategy, 11e Board ensures
that the ooiectives of our purpose are met
while Gien taking into aczount the risks and
opportantizs fozing the Group.

The Board
- Strategy updates

- CEQrg report

- Presentotions by the Groun HR Director
Sector and functen presentanons

- Ermployee engugement survey

- Site visits

- Board Cormmittees

Crur Board Cormrnittess also play an

pertant role i rmonitonng ou° culture:
Remuneration Commritiee receives
updates from the Group HR Director that
provide an overvew of pay structures

cross the Group and their alignment

with our purpose, values and strategy.
Th's gilows the Committee 1o ensure that
the reievart policies and practices are
consistert with our values.

ol

The 2018 UK Corporate Governanze Code
‘the Code) emphasizes the importonce of
thﬂ- re e ot the Boord regarding cuiture, with
atediald rrrmendations that the Boord
seszes and mantors, Our decentrghsed
mc-de! rmears that culture is embedded in
L b sses. each of whics has its own
argue sspects which we oelieve are oritical
to the autonomy and erpowerment that
underpans the G'uup's suCcess, However,
“here are core shared vaiues atross our
bus nesses. respect. continuous
irmprovernent and aocountabiity.

qugit, both of which can give an
indication of cu'ture, particu-arly horning
inon any negative elements that don’t
align with the Group’s cuiture,

Drirng trie yeor, the Boord hes menitored

cuture in g umoer of ways, This neoludes

‘ ‘ presentoticns rom Sector

cader st fTrr‘*éF]\ eview SeSTIGHS G8 w@“

i Clture frore 1}

F)urress‘rum,' sCaing up

[eNR e RVEE \Jd oTOde TRguUITES CONSTant

nd our culture nas o oritica' role
sunporiing growth When

g acquisto” strateges. culturs
important ares of foc

Employee engagement

The Board is comimitted to engaging
v th emp.ovees gnd nas
eTpioyee engagement miethods specified
oy the Code but felt that aliemotive
n"e'mo\k are more arpreprate. Given
the Group's cecentratised micdel and
geoqraphical spread, the Board nas
centinued with o multi-faceted approach
1o engagement with the grebal workforce
tmat i ot led ov any one Director or group

of Dlrectors,

[

disCuss o,

fe ol e kew wiys e

Wee consider that engugemant by the loca!
“Managng Directors (MOs) wito their own
workforce together with strong channels
of comrmun cotion frem MDs to their
respective Sector CEC osa
LommuTatior witt the g obal worr force
ed oy the Grouz'’s central functions,

Crow drg ar effect’ve o ootforr for

”‘ﬂ% rent Lwo-way daiogue witn

m
Q

~
o
]
%

- Audit Comim ttee nas uversight of interna
conirols and continuous oocess te interna

Trie Boad fees weil | D oonC

views ans imatters and uses g corbingtion

of mretnoas 1o comaly wath the Code's

reQuirenter Ty

- Reguor sodotes o the Bourd ot every
schecwed Board mestng o people
rradtiers. ver e past veon colieaguc
welineing :Jr-d norae hove Deen Sreas of
ween forus

- Coieague. taient ond Culture updotes

frore the Group HR Director.
— The Rermunergtion Zormrmitiee revews
workdoree pay practices across Dipliema.

- The Zoord regulany undertakes site visits,
Executve Boord members regularly
interact wth indivicua businesses and
our it structure ensures s1rong . channels
of comrurication,

- The Board was presented wth the
outcomes of the Group Co league
Engugermnent Survey and discussed these

“with key learnings. We were

3 wite the hgh participaton rate

and engagerrent njex score the t

re:u\t) of 1me surves ars detsiled on pages

36w

o
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Set out below are sormc of the woy actities

Strategy & strategic execution

o
1the stro

including crimrospeet oF
manaa ornic.
Presentatiors by the Corparcie
Deve 1 Director ard Se

leads SLrate Jic pronites ore
execstor agairet 1those pricnties
Revievwed and discussed cur ESG strategy
and approact, Deliver ng Value
Responsitly
Reviewed and approvad the Sro
M& A and bosir
[ACINER - §=Tol fe Lol gTPNSR I
other profects.
Sreateq. ceview cassion.

-

Bl Report 2022

o

2 A i

watters cons deres and dedimion: made by the Board in the yvear

Finance

20%

- Receiverd zr2s on the Group's financial
perfor~cnoo

- Approved the 2023 budget; monitored
performance against the 2022 budget
through regular presentations from the
CFO.

Assessed and approved the proposed
dividend payments, balancing the views
of various stakeholders.

- Investor relations: received regular reports
including share register moverment and
feedback from analysts and investers.

- Presentations from Tax and Treasury
Functicns.

- Control of Treasury and Tax policies.

Operations

-~
10%

Regulo updates from the CEO.
Monirtored and discussed the impact
af Covid-19 on the Group's operations.
Mcdern Stavery Statement.

Sector presentations.




Colleagues & culture

15%

- Reviewed Greup Colleague Engagement
Survey,

- Received reports on workforce wellbeing
throughout the year.

- LJSA site visits.

- Taiert and succession undate.

- Whistleblowing reports.

15%

Received reports on the macroeconomic
envirenment, world events and emerging
trends.

Annual rigk review: review of principal
risks to ensure they remain appropriate
together with mitigating activity;
reviewed and approved the inclusion

of new and emerging risks,

Quarterly risk updates.

Cybersecurity briefing.

Annual Insurance Review,

Governance

15%

O
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

Anne Thorburn 5/5
{Chair)

Andy Smith 5/5

Geraldine Huse 5/5

Dean Finch SE

The role of the Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for
ensuring that the Group mairtains a strong
control envirornment. It provides effective
governance over the Group’s financial
repaorting, including oversight and review
of the systems of internal control and risk
rmanagerment, the performance of internal
and extermal audit functions, as well os the
behaviour expected of the Group's
employees through the whistleblowing
policy and simitar codes of conduct. The
Committee continues to focus on
rmonitaring and overseeing management
on these improverrents to governance,
cernplionce and financial safeguards.

Terms of reference can be found on

our website at www.diplomaplc.com

102 Diplema PLC Annuc! Report 2022

K

ey matters discussed

Reviewed and ogreed the scope of audit
work 1o be uncertaken by the extermal
auditor and agreed the terms of
engagement and fees to be paid for the
external audit.

Reviewed the Annual Report & Accounts
and received reports from the CFG and
the external auditar on the key
accounting issues and areas of significant
Judgermeant.

Reviewad the report on compliance with
the UK Corporate Governance Cede 2018
ard reports on the provision of
information to the auditor.

Reviewed the recert from the CFQ an the
controls in place to mitigate froud risk.
Revievred the Half Year Anrouncement
and received reports from the external
auditor on the key accourting it -z
areas of significant jucdgermer

Revievred the trading updatss.
Reviewed the effectiveness = the
internal control and risk mera-
procedures and where app.ro .-
recornmendatiors to the .

for improvement.

Irvited the Group Intermna &1

to cttend meetings to rew o

of the internal audit waork o1 v

year and to agree the sc -

interral audit work to be s
“ollowing year.

Reviewed the UK Corper o s v o
Code 20°8 and future r=:.:

section 172 Companies -~

Approved the Commit -

programme for 2023,

Approved the Going Crur

Staterrents,

Continued to monftor ==

audit reforrm and chaeo

Received trainirg and

external advisore on -

reporting requiremer

Oversaw the audit por e - s




Dear Shareholder

Tre Audit Committee assists the Board 'n
discharging 'ts responsibilities with regard to
monitoring the integ-'ty of Group financiol
‘eporting. externa’ and nterna. audits and
centrals. Thuz inciudes advising on the
renppertment and independence of
external auditsr s and assessing the guality
of their services; and reviewing the

effec tiveness and appropriateness of the
Cornpany s internal audit activities, internal
conttols and monagerent systemns.

Duning the year ended 30 Septermber 2022,
the Committee haos ensured that 't has had
oversight of al these areas while aiso
foousing on diverse changes in the external
envirorment, both regulatory and palitical,
inluding any comtinued residual impact

of tne Covid-19 pandemic, which has had
arange of impiications or the risk
rranogernent activites of the Company.

“Adapting to
a changing
environment and
new ways of working
to ensure financial
integrity and robust
and effective internal
controls.”

The Commitiee continues to monitor the
uncertainties arising frorm these changes
and conader the management and
mitigaticn of tnese ricks. In addition, the
Committee has received reparts on internal
audits for the Group's businesses, together
weith goveral deep dive sessions including

in respect of audits of recently acquired
businesses, as well as updates on the steps
being taken te address internal audit
findings and contral issues.

fcomnmented in last year's report that the
Cornrmittee was mindful of the changing
gavernance landscape and potential weight
of anticipoted regulation in the near future,
given the number of recent formal reviews
undertaken regarding different aspects of
corporate governance and audit market
reform. In particularn, we note the UK
government’s proposed reforms to the audit
and corporate governance regime which
were published on 31 May 2022 and wnich
inciude tme creation of a new reguiotor for
the audit industry ond increased disclosure
requirarnents in respect of internal contrels.
In anticipation of these reforms and under
the supervision of the Committes,
managenent Kas started planning for
expected changes, incduding prelirrinary
steps in determining the scope and conterts
of the Company’s audit and assurance policy.

The Committee has also monitored
in*tictives of other reguiatory authorities

to provide investars with consistent,
cormparoble and refiable information on
chrmate-related and ESG matters, Ve are
supportive of -egulation that enabies
rorrmed investrrient decisions and support
efforte to encourage harmonisation across
requicItory regirmes.

Ag Audit Chare, | hove regular conversotions
with tne CFO, Group Internal Audit Director,
Group Financial Controller. Group Company
Secretory & mead of Legal and also the cudit
opattrer at PricewaternouseCoopers LLP
(P, cur external auditor

FwC has now cornpleted its fifth tuit amnual
cycle, and we voiue the rigou- ond challenge
of its anproach. | am pleased to report that
again there hove been no sigificant control
deficiencies or arcounting irregularities
“eported 1o the Comrittes this year. The
Commitiee pians 1o commence a retender
process for the cudit during 202672027 for
e FY28 Anrual Report and Accounts in
order to make any necessary chongei 1C
providers of other services in a timely and
orderiy fashion ond to appoint an ouditor
nefore the start of tiat year as this is 'n the
best interests of our sharehoicers Fam
confident that the Audit Committee has
carded cut its duties effectively and tc a
high standord during the vear, providing
independont oversight with the support

of rmarogerment and assurance fromn the
externa auditors. In accordance with UK
regulaticns, Pwl adheres to 6 rotation
policy bused on best practice and the Group
engadsment partner will serve o period of
~o ionge than Fve vears, Chiris Buirs
secame tre iead audit partner for the vear
ended 30 September 2018 foliowing the
apeco nt~ent of Pwl, and thecfore tris will
oe his fina audit.

Hook forward 1o rmeeting shareholders ot
tre Arngal General Meeting cn 18 January
20723 and will bhe hapoy to rescond to any
guastions elcting 1o tne activitiss of the

Audit Comrmilte

Anne Thorburn
Chair of the Audit Committee
21 November 2022
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Audit Committee

The Com-rittee 1€ cheired oy Anne Thorburn
and compr ses four Independent Non
Executive Directors, Tre Corrittee acts
independently of the Execut ve Directors
and managernent, Dur members have

o range of s«<ils ana the Committee as o
whoie has experience relevont 1o the Sectors
in which the Groug operates, Ante has
recent and relevant financial experience,
as required by the Code.

The Group Company Secretary & Head of
Legal ools s Secretory 1o e Co ommtiee.
[me Executive Directors also attend
Zommities meethgs and subject matter
experts are v ted 1o oresent on spectic
topcs Gt and when required. The
Committee met with the externa auditor
g the yvear, vithout the Executive

Directore being present.

Tre Auct Commirtee confirms that the
Zompary hos cormoied with the prowvis omg
of tne Compeitior & Markets Autho Ty
Order througout 1 finanaal year ended
30 Seprernbe ;2 and up T the date of

thic report.

Financial reporting and significant

financial judgerments and estimates

The Tommnttee considered and assessed:

- tnefL sear and ot yeqar results, ard
tradimg woaates for recomrmendation
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The Cormmmittee consdered the ratters set
aut Delow as being significant n the context
of the consolidated financai stotements for
the year ended 30 September 2022, "hese
were discussec and reviewed with
rmanagement and the external guditor: the
Conmittee then challenged judaerrents
and souaht clarification where necessary.

The Committee considered the judgements
made in preparing the financial statements,
including the accounting for acquisitions

and associated valuation of intongible
assets, the provisions for excess and
slow-rnoving irwemtO'y, e potential for
irmparment of goodwill ond the
appropriateness of the Going Concern
ass.mption. The Committee alse reviewed
the movemients in the Group's defired
henefit pension schemes

Accounting for acquisitions and
dlsposuls

Tne Committee revie ved the occounting
*or azauisition: completed during the year,
in particular the acquisitions of R&G Flaed
Pavser Group and Accuscence.
acausitions were materiol for the F\r Zaat
and, naccordance with IFRS 3 (Business
Corr.omgtions), management has
perfrrrmed a full ol value sxercise for these
WD ATQUIS tiors i this yesrs Snancdl
statements, As part of trer audit 5* the
Graoce, the external auditor has perforred
WOk 0N
2} the Furchase Price Aliocation (PRA;
ol the opening balanze sheet as at the
acquisition dater and
¢! audit of any ~aterial far value
adiustmerts anising on Tne acquisits”
balance sneet.
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The (omittes rev'ewed ana challenged
regt ageTent’s 2isesaTrent, which g'se
imciaded cons deration o the externg audit
£range, The Lommnitee concluced thot
THC DT

ST CIdusTiaTe ik
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ang e oth

nleleigs any

The Srous completed twe disposals in
e yeqr for combined proceeds of £21m
resutting ra et profit on dsposal of 17.
Tre profit on disposal ras been presented
within goauwsition and other relgted items.

Provisions for excess and slow-

moving inventory

The Cam=ittee reviewed the report of

the CFO that set out the gross balances,
together with any reiated provision against
the carryng vaiue of inventory. The
Committee reviewed the nases used to
vawue inventory heid across the Group; they
also consideied the aporopr alenese of
avisicre heid against the car ying value
ot invertany, noving "=go-e 1o tne oge and
valurnes o‘ Mventory relgtive to expected
usage and considering the AChans toranin
response 1o supaly cram tines during
the veor and any continusd f
Covid-18 pand

mytTes Conc uwdea trat ‘me
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Impairment of goodwil

Tre Cormmmitce cons's

the comrvitg

valae o goodwlt ang tr
Lnder the mna rment review, The
jl.dgc-“w'; reotan t oondwd
impairre st s gel, oot
QssLmpt Cne Lhder lying the ca cularons oF
the value i~ use of the casm-gererating wr
(CFUS‘- cengtested o o rment T“wey:
judgerents are prens L tre zaculction oF
the & S"OJ"T retes, whion mzve Nz recsed.
ok ffec— ~ates and the cost o
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Other audit matters

Tre Committee aiso considered other less
rnaterial matters including the vaiuotion of
the Group's aefined benefit sceme and the
impact of the key actuarial osserptions oo
the balances. The Committes is sotisAed
with the yenr =ne position and the
QssUTPLions used.

In addition to the above, the Commitiee
also seeks comments from the auditar on
whether the Group's businesses fellow
appropriate policies to recognise materia;
streams of revenue, and their audit work
carried out more generaily has assessed
whether there 1< any evidence of
rnanagernerit overide of key irternal
contrels designed to guerd against froud
of materiai misstaternent,

As oart of its monitoring o the mteg-ity

of the financial stotements, the Camimittes
reviews whether suitobe accounting
poficies have been gdopted and whetner
managernent hos made oppropriate
estimotes ond judgements, and seeks
support from the external auditor 1o
assess them.

Going Concern and Viability

The Going Concers and Viability azzessmient
was prepared by ronagerent. In prepaning
the assessment, mancgement cammed ot
rEVErse SIress testing as wel as scenaric
analysis. Two scenancs were cons'dered

- the base case and the downside case. The
base zase reflects actual recent troding and
takes account of any further residaar impact
of Covid-19. The downside cose reflects o
Tore significant decline i~ troding, adverse
mavements i workirg capital and lowe:
than forecast operating margin, and is
censidered by monagement 1o ne o severe
but plavsibie scenario.

The Group has ampie higudity and covenam
headroom o econ scenano for hotn Go'ng
Concern ard Viability Stotement nunoses
Tre Avdit Commitiee reviawes 1
assurmptions underpinning eco” stetar o
and s satsfied with management’s
assessrment and conclusions ’
Going Concern and Viabiity, Futhes det 2]
20 the cssessment of Viakiity ana he
Wiapil'ty Stote~ient are set oLt o
Further getais on Going Concer

foLnd on poge "70.
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Engagement of the external auditor

The external auditar is engaged to express
an opinion on the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company. The audit
ncludes the consderotion of the systems

ot internol financiol control and the Jata
contained i~ the financas stotemmerts, to
the extent necessary for expressing an audit
opinon on the truth and fairness of the
financial stoternents.

During the year, the Committee carried out
an assessment of the oudit process, led by
the Charr of the Committee and assisted by
the CFO. The assessment focused on certain
criteria that the Committee considered 1o
oe importart factors in demoenstrating an
effective audit process. These foctors
inciuded the guolity of the audit process
and the robustness of challenge to
management, key audit risks ond how these
have been oddressad, the planning and
execution of Tne oudit and the role of
rmanagerment i the audit process.

The Comirmittee was satisfied that the
Pul quait of the Company and Group had
orovided o robust and etfective audit ond
an appropr ate independent challenge of
the Group's servor management. it also
supported the work of the Commities
Trougn e o ecTive CommiLnication
on developrments in financial reporting

and governance.

nd o

The Carmir 1tee alse cversaw the aud't
cartrer rotation process as Chris Burns, the
current iead audit partner, 1s due to rotate
after thie FYZ2 year end. A repiacerent has
been ientifec and hos been shadowing the
audit procecs to ensure 2 sooth hondover,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Non-audit services

The Committee has approved the Group’s
internal guidelines covering the type of
non-audit work that can be carried out by
the external auditor of the Group, in light

of the regulation set out in the EU Audit
Directive and Audit Regulation 2014 (the
Regulations) and the Financial Reporting
Council {FRC) Revised Ethicat Standard 2019,

The Reguiations substantially curtail those
non-audit services that can be provided by
the auditer 1o the Group and in particular
prohibits all tax related services, including
cormpliance services as well as general
odvice and ol consultancy ond advisory
services. The Regulations stipulate that
Board approval is required if eligible
non-audit services, such as due diligence
and simnilar assurance services, exceed 30%
of the prior year Group audit fee and the
Cempany may not allow eligible non-audit
services to exceed 70% of the Group audit
fee, calcuiated on a rolling three-year basis.

The CFO does rot have delegated authority
t¢ engage the external quditor to carry oLt
any no7-oudit work, but Must seex opproval
#rorm the Chair oF the Audit Commrittee,

Taxation services are ~ot provided oy the
Group's cutrent gudit firm; a range of
different firms are used for the provision

of tax advice and any, assistance with 1ax
compticnce matters genaralty. In addition.
aue diligence exercises on acguisitions and
similar transactions ore mot provided by the
auditor, but ere olaced with other firmms.

The externa ougitor is retained to carry cut
Jss.rance services to the Committee i
connecticn with ‘agreed upor procedures’
on the Group’s Mo year conselidated
fingncial ststemente (£28.000). Tre externa:
audtor alsc provides access to its Viewpoint

tachn'col subst inro™ sersace

With the exception of these services,

PwC has not provided any non-oudt
sarvires 1o the Group or tts subsidiaries
and has confirmed its independence 1o
the Audit Committee. Further information
is set out in note 25 1o the consolidated
financial statements,

The Committee assures itself of the
auditor’s independence by receiving reguiar
reports from the external auditor which
provide details of any cssignments and
related fees carried out by the auditor in
additicn ¢ s normnel audit work, and these
are reviewed against the above guidelines.
Pw(C has reconfirmed its independence for
the current financial year.

Risk management and internal control
The principal risks and uncertainties thet
are curient y judged to have tne mest
significant 'mpact on the Group's long-term
performance are set out in Q seporaie
section oF the Strotesic Renort on Inteno!
Zemtrol and Risk Magnagement on pages

80 o 88.

The Commruttee is responsible for reviewing
the efectiveness of the Groan's system of
interrg, cortro . The systern of i~ternal
comtrol s desizred 1o monage rather than
eliminate the nek of faire 1o achieve
business otectives and can only provide
regsonoble and not absslute assurance
SQanst "noteral MmissTatemant 07 loss,

Tme Grous w0 The necessary procedures
in ploce 1o ensare that there 1S an oNgaing
process forizentifying, evaluating and
Managma The onnc pa risks 12 the Group.

Key finoncial and operational rmeasures
relaling 1o revenue, cosh and recervabres
are reported on a weekly basis. Detoiied
monogement occounts ond key
performance indicators are prepared
monthly using a robust oroorietary reporting
system to collect ang analyse financial dota
ina consistent format, Montnly results are
measured against beth budget and hatt
year reforecasts which have been approved
and reviewed by the Board. All capltal
expenditure above predefined amourts
must be supported by o poper prepared by
managernent,

A financial dato is taken drectly frem each
business’ trial baicnce held in the locar ERP
systern ond reanalysed and formartted in a
separate Group Mmanagement reporting
systerm, operated by the Group Finance
department. There is ne rekeying of financial
aata by the Group businesses 1o report
~monthiy financial resuits. The Group Finane
department continues te develop the
functionaiimy of this mancogeent reporting
systerm to provide greater insights intc the
financiai and operationa activities of the
Group's businssses.

The Group's irmernal aud tor reguta-ly audits
the hase data ot etc~ bosiness to ensute 1t
is oropetly repo:tea ttwough 1o the Group
rnanogement reporting system

Ag part of the year end close process, each
business is required tc complete o self
ossessment that evaluotes the financial
contro. enviconment in thei Gusiness,
designed t¢ dentify weaxnesses it controls
These assessments are criticaily reviewed
oy the Group Internal Audit Drector and
evaluated as part of regular Internal

Aud T ez,

A sumimiary for eqch bus necs s Crepare

forthe buct Commmittee, in od 3 on, senlor
managEMment O




Trie Commitiee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal contral systems
for the period from 1 Octoper 2021 to the
date of tris report. Taking into account the
matters set out on pages 82 to 88 reiating
to principal risks and uncertainties and the
reports from the Group Internal Audit
Director, the Board, with the advice of the
Cemmittee, is satisfied that the Group has
in place effective risk management and
internal control systems.

Internal audit

The GOroup maintains aninternal audit
departrment which reporis directiy to both
the CFC and Chair of the Audit Committee.
The department cormprises o Grodp Intarna
Audit Director and a Group Internat Auditor
based at the Group's offices in London.

i January 2022, the Group Internal Augit
Drector pracented his audit plan for the
vear to the Committee for its approval.
1ncreas'ng\y during the year, internal cudit
undertook audits in perscn as travel
restrict’ons were lifted in a number of key
jurisdictions. The deportment continued 1c
eftect’vely rely on remote visits with the use
of appropricte communication technology
where cite visits weare not possible.

Tre scope of work carrfed out by interna.
audit generally focuses on the interral
financial, operctional and compliance
controls operating with.n each business,
including r'sk managerment activities and
basineszz process improvernents. Formoal
written reports are prepared on the resuits
of each internal audit visit that set cut
rerna. control weaknessesrisks identified
Jring ther work, together with
recommendations to improve the internai
ontrol environment and mitigate these
weaxnecsesirisks, These reports are timelv
ond reguiarly discussed with serior
erment within the Group. The reports
hared with the external auditors.

At the end of the financal year. the Graus
Ivternal Audit Director formally reports to
the Cormmittee on the sesu'ts of the internal
oudit work carried out by his department
during the vear. The Committes reviews
management’s responses to motters raised,
including the time taken to resolve stek
Tatters. Updated -eports on progress
against tne plan are provided at reguiar
intervals ond the Audt Chair alio meets
separately with the Group Interncl Audit
Directer at least twice a year to review some
of the department’s reports ond discuss
their findings.

There were no significant or nigh risk
matters identified in the internal audits
undertaken during the current fincncial
year. Several recormmendations were again
riade this year to the businesses in regard
1o 'mplerrenting odequote and effectve
internal contrals and procedares aimed

at improving existing processes around
cybersecurity, inventery manogernent

and procurement.

The Committee conducted the crnnuatl
review of the effectiveness of the intena:
audit departrment, incluging s audit pian,
general performance and relationshio with
the external audito s, Bosed on s review,
the Cormmittee was satsfed with the
effectiveness of the Groun's internal oudit
‘unction, specifically that the ‘nternar gudis
department is sufficiently independent of
executive management and nas sutficient
resources and scope that s appropriate for
the size and nature of the Group

Whistleblowing

The Committee also monitors the adeguocy
of the Group's whistlebiowing pclcy, which
orovides the framewark 1o encourage and
give ermpioyzes cenfidence to "blow tne
wristle” and report irregularities. The poiicy,
rogether wit huotline pesters, are placed on
site noticebcards across the Group.
Emnplovees ore encouraged to raise concerns
via the confidentia’ multiingual hotline,
wmich is managed by an independent
external company and is availabie 24/7,

365 days o veaor.

Al reports are ciovided to the Group
Company Secrctary & Head of Legal for
review, 1¢ ensure that they are appropriatety
investigoted - with the support of internal
acdit anc external rescurce, if required.
Most motters reported through the
whistleplawing service relate to persennels
HR matters and, wrile these are not areas
for review by the Committee, such matters
cre dily investigated 'nthe samne manne-
o6 Gy OTher Bl ue raised.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

4/4

David Lowden
{Chair)

Anne Thorburn 5/5

5/5

Andy Smith

Geraldine Huse 5/5

Dean Finch a/5

John Nichalas

The role of the Committee

The Nemination Committes reviews the
composition of the Soard and prircipal
Commitiess, considering skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity requirements before
rmaking approprials recommendations to
the Board regarding ary changes. it akso
marages succession planning for Directors
and the Group Cormpany Secretary and
oversees succession planning for senior
leadership acress the Group.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

108 Diplorma PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

- Recroitmiert of a Chief Financial Officer
and krocder sucressior planning for
Chairs of Audit and Rermunearation
Committee.
Consideraticn of a detailed skills,
experience and diversity matrix that
sought to identily recruitrment priorities
based on idertified gaps, industry
expectations and qood practice.
Focilitating a more diverse list of potential
candidates ahead of the secrah tor twe
Non-Executive Directers by setting clear
objectives for the externagl search
consultants and ensuring a clear
articulation of the company’s ongoing
commitment to improving diversity in role
specifications.
Caonsideration of the contributions o
efHectiveness of the Nor-Exec
Directors seeking re-elzction
Annual General Meeti )
recommen
sharehol:iz




Dear Shareholder,
fam pedsed to set out below the report on
the activities of the Nomination Committee

during the year

Tre Board is of the view That 1 ic essential
10 nave an appropriate r'x of experence,
expertise, diversity end independence. Such
diverse attributes enable the Board as o
whole to provide infoermed opinions and
advice on strategy and relevant topics,
thereoy discharging its duty of oversight,
Appoirtments 1o the Board a-e made
following consideration of the experience
and expertise of existing Directors, any
reguired ckill sete or cormpetencies, and the
strotegic recuirements of the Group. During
2022, tre composition of the Board changed
stightey, -eflecting: {i) John Nicholos
stepping down fromr the Boaord, and (i) the
departure of Barbora Giboes

Afundomenta responsibility of the
Comrittee is to ensure ptans are in clace
for orderly succession 1o the Board, as w
as our Croup Comrpany Secretary and semior
managernent postions, and the Committee
detares these regularly. The main focus of
the Comrnittee during this past year hos
beer on Soard succession planning,
inciuding the appointment of our aew Criet
Financia Officer and the search for the
Chaire of tre Audht and Remunergtion
Comrrtiess 1o ensure these pos'tions are
appo nted in time for g orderly handove:.
Tre Committee continaaily monitors the
boiance onthe Boord to ensure we nave the
nght combination of skills, experieace and
krowledge consistent with the long term
strategy of the Company. This aiaws us to
identify where furthe: focus is needed in the
coming years and bhevond,

We are mingiul of the gisqussions araund
improving divessity and inclusion. together
with the targets ot oy the Hompitc
Lrexander Review and the Parksr Review
Folow ng the departure of Barbara Gibres
tihe end of the fingncial year, Two ot oF
s (2657
te Board's o te et the Tagets eet o
tre oo A ex g I Oaree re,
dealing with gender 2no ethn'c Siversty

{1

are womern, [tis

o Dhrect

-

+

The Boord wilt maintain oversighit of the
range of activities the Group 1s pursuing
armed at increasing the diversity of our
workforce - incuding the executive pipeline
that 's essential for Executive Director
succession pionning. We have written
elsewnere {see nage 40} about our Group-
wide cpproach to diversity and inclusizn,
wrich emmanotes from the Board and
impacts the approach of the Nomination
Committee.

The FRC's guidance on board effectiveness
recognises q breadth of diversity that goes
beyond just gender and race, and includes
personal attributes including intellect,
critical assessment, judgement, courage,
horesty and toct; ond the asility to fsten
ard forge relationships and develop trust.
This ensures that a board is not cormprised
of ['ke-minded individuas. The Cormmmittee
agrees thot diversity is vital when reviewing
the compaosition of the Boord and setting
the criteria for the recruitment o new
opportees, alongside succession pianning
activities. External search consultants are
expected to maoke every effort 1o put
torward diverse candidates for new Board

positions. Whilst appointrments wil! continue

1o be made on merit and against obective
orteria, it remains the Committee’s
imtention tnat the diversity on the Boord
Wb continue 1o Increase over Time.,

Tre Committee has cisc maintained ts
focus on the executive suctession pineline
ard senicr management saccession pisns

vathin the Group, reflecting its responsbility

to ensure azpropriate plans are in place

David Lowden

Chair of the Board and Nomination
Committee

21 Novermber 2022

“Ensuring the right mix
of skills and
experience to deliver
long-term value for
our stakeholders.”

0]

MIIAIBA

yoday 21baybayg

adupulaAog aybiodior

S1USW2)D35 [DI2UbULS

O
+
-
[+]
=
5
-
=]
=
3
o
=
o
=



NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by
David Lowden, Boord Thair. The Committee
comprisas the Non-Executive Directors and
rnests as necessary to discharge its
responsibilities.

The Group Company Secretary acts as
Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee reviews the composition

of the Board and principal Committees,
considering skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity requirernents before making
appropriate recomimendations to the Board
regarding any changes. it alsc manages
succession planning for Directars and the
Group Company Secretary, and oversees
suecession planning for senicr leadership
across the Group,

The Committee’s role and responsibiities a-e
set out o its Terms of Reference, wrich were
reviewed during the year and approved by
the Board.

Process for Board appointments

Step 2

Induction and professional development
The Chair, assisted by the Group Compary
Secretary, is responsitie for ensuring that
there 's a properly constructed and timely
induction for new Directors upon joining the
Board Upon oppointment, ail new Directors
are provided with o comprehensive
induction, where they meet with key
members of managerment and farmiicrise
thermseives with al' core aspects of the
Growo, its businesses and the markets in
i it operates.

Uirectors are encouraged, wherever
possiole, te visit the Group's sites so that
they Can get o better understanding of
the pusiness and interact with emipovees
Whille trave: was restricted and complex
durng the Covid-1%7 pondemiz, site visits

by viduai Cirectors {and the Board as

a whiole! hove resumed and allowed
Dirertors to see Diniomme's safety and
susta’mabdity processes, to telk with iocal
rmonagement ant workforces and to assess
mow effectively Dioloma’s cuiture is
cormunicated and empesded at cli ievels.

Step 3 Step 4

The Crair also has the responsibility of
ensuring that Directors receive training on
o continual bas's in support of their ongsing
development. This training is provided by
way of techrica: updates, reports and
briefings prepored for Board meetings.
Directors have full access to our corporate
advisors as well 0s a reguiar and
comprehensive supply of financial,
operational, strategic and regulatory
informaticn to heip them discharge their
responsibilities.

During the year, the Boa-d held o strategy
review session 1o confinm the Company's
strategic godis Gs weii s "eceiving detailed
updates on operaticns and support
functions.

Step 5

The Committee
reviews and
approves an

outiine briet and
role specification
and appoints a
search agent 1o
facilitate the search

A Committee
member
discusseas the
specification with
the independent
search agent, who
prepares an initial
longlist of
candidates

The Committee
then defines a
shortlist of
caondidates and
we hold interviews

The Committee
mokes G
recormnmendation
to the Board for its
consideration

Following Board
approval the
appaintment is
announced in line
with the
requirernents of the
FCA's Listing Rules




Calendar of activities
Novemnber 2021

Meeting all Board
colleagues, both
individuaily and
collectively

Meeting Group
heads of functions

chlichis "JI":':

January 2022

Handover with
cutgoeing Chair

D'plema PLC Annaal Report 20272

March 2022

Visit to Windy

City Wire in
Chicage, and
Hercules
Aftermarket in
Louisville in the USA

Visit 1o Shoal Group,
1S Group and
Clarendon in

the UK

April 2022

Chair Q&RA
published in the
Purple Portal, the
Group's newsletter
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Onboarding processes

The decentrolised nature of the Group has
always made induction processes com™mplex.,
The pandemic led us to reconsider how
these processes can be conducted
effectively. Customarily there would have
been face-to-face meetings with key
executives and monagement, introductions
1o their direct reports, one-to-ones following
the inttial rmeetings, and site visits arranged
to key businesses, Now parts of the
induction plan are conducted via video calis;
particularly where key people are located
outside of Europe. This permits Directors tc
have considerably graater exposure to the
various businesses and personne! and we
are pleased thot we can once again
encouroge Directors to visit our businesses
and appreciale our culture and celleagues in
person as well as continuing to develop their
understanding of each business.

Succession planning

The Committee formally reviews succession
planning for the Board, Group Company
Secretary ond Head of Legal, and senior
rmanagerment at least ance each year.
taking into account the chalienges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
background, skills and expertise that will be
required by the Group in the future. During
2022, foligwing the appontment of the new
Board Chair, the Committee undertook o
more torough analysis of the Board's
competencies. The Comrittes also
considered how the Board would be required
to evolve to be fit for the future, as weil as
any potentiol gaps that may need 1z be
filled through succession or training.

The CEG manages the development of
succession plans for executive
rmanagement, and these are overseen oy
the Committee. The CEC and Group HR
Director preserted o succession olanring
update to the Board in January 2027,

The Commnittee is aware of the importance
of identifying criticai rotes within the
businesses 10 ensure we retzin and mativate
key talent and have the necessary skills for
the “uture. Overctl, it was clear that we have
a good execut ve and management
succession pianning process and,
importantly, succession is being actively
maonaged by the Executive team to achieve
the desired long-term outcornes.

The standard term for Non-Executive
Directers is three years. They normally serve
for a maxirnurr of nine years, which is spiit
across three terms of three yeors each. All
Directors ace subject to annuai re-election.
With only specific exceptions that may be
necessaryv 1o ersure Board continuity,
Nen-Executive Drectors shall not stand for
i fter they nave served for the
period of thel independence, as deternined
v appl'cab e LK standards, of nine vears.

Length of tenure

2005 2016 2077

28

2009 2020 2021

2027 2028 2029 2030

David Lowaen

Ardy Srran

e Trorbursy

Dean Fing»




Board evaluation

e Board conducts an annug evaluation of its performance and that of its committees and, in accordance with good proctice, engages
an indepengent third- porty facinater to assist in this process every three years, For the yeor enced 30 Septemser 2022, the evaiuotion of
the Board as a whole and of its committees was undertaken internally, led by the Board Chair. Board mearmibers completed gquestionnaives
regarding the operation and effectiveness of the Board and its committees. Findings were collated by the Group Companry Secretary and
tne Board Char discussed the conclusions ond recommendations separately with each Director.

The pertormance of the Non-Executive Directors was reviewed by the Board Chair. The performance of the Executive Directors waos
reviewed oy the Board Chair and tne Nan-Executive Directors and the results of the 2022 evzivation process were considered by the Boord.
The conclusion was that the Boord continued to function well, and the onboarding of the Board had been well receivec, resulting in
imprevernent 1o Board processes ond workplans. Directors operated in an atmosphere of open and constructive debate with a good
breadth of skills, experence, ond viewpoints. Following the evaluation, the below recommendations were made:

Recommendation Action
Consider the diversity of the Board, from both a gender and Nomination Corrrnittee to address diversity reguirerments in
ethnicity standpaint. succession planning and during the MNon-Executive Diractor

recruitment process.

Caontinue to chailenge ard support o the progress of DVR actions.  Consider £5G skilisets during the Non-Executive Birector recriuitrrent
pracess, creation of an ESG Committes cs well as enhanced focus on
clirmate-related financial risks.

Improve mtcrmction shared with the Board to enbance visibility on - Board popers 1o include executive surnmaries 1o bring focus 1o
certain topics and improve decision-rmaking. discussions, and Sector presentations 1o the Board to inciude key
indicators of custarner and supplier performance.

The Company expects 1o update sharenoiders on the progress made in reistion 1o the matters identified above in its 2023 Annua: Report.

Key areas for development
Tme below recommendation: wee —iede folowing the 2027 external Board perfermonce evaluation.

Recommendation Action

Consider increas ng the s ze of the Buard and bringing in furtner MNomination Commitiee reviewed the composition of the Board
skills relevant to Dic oa's size and operations and incorporatad this into succession pionning.

Board training prograr e 1o Do ovsleed Additiona’ sessions imcluded as part of annual coendor as well oz

besnoke sessions from advisors as required.

Empicyes engagernent 1o oe revened Increased ~urnber of site visits, witn Non-Executive Directors
conducting these ingvidually 2n oceasion ond providing feedoack
to the Board.

Board dinner in the evering pricr 10 meetings included o —over
spacific ereos of focus or concern ond nerrrit further informa

enaogement with ney menagernent

o]
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Meetings attended
6/6

Member
Andy Smith (Chair)

Anne Thorburn 6/6

David Lowden 6/6

Geraldine Huse 6/6

Dean Finch 876

John Nicholas 171

The role of the Committee

The Committes, en behalf of the Board,
agrees all aspects of the remuneration

of the Exzcutive Directors, It agrees the
strategy, direction, and palicy framewark
for the remuneration of the senior
oxecutives who have significant infuence
over the Group's ability to meet its strategic
objectives. The Cemmittee also oversees

all workforce remureration policies.

Yerms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

4 Diplema PLC Anmual Report 2022

Key matters discussed
Approved Rermuneration Conmmittee work
programmre for 2022,
Reviewed the AGM 2022 votes on the 2021
Remuncration Cormmittes Report.
Reviewed and propcssd the new
Directars’ Rernuneratior Policy, ond as «
result, proposed amendments to the rut
of the Biploma PLC 2020 PSP,
Approved the service contract for the
mews SR
Appraved anrucl perforrmance bonus
targets and the subseguent bonus awards
for 2022,
Approved new Performance Share Plam
(PSP} awards for Executive Directors and
Group senior mancgement,
Confirmed the vesting percentages for
the PSP awards made in Decernber 2019,
which crystallised in 2022
Reviewred Executive Directors salaries,
pensions, and benefits.
Reviewed the fees of the Chair and
Non-Executive Directars.
Reviewed remuneration framework “or
Executive Team and senior manas :
in the opercting businesses,
Reviewed work force remuneratior
framewaork,
Approved the 2022 Remuneratic:
Commit tee Report.




Dear Shareholder

As Chair of the Board Remuneration
Committee (Committee), { am pleased to
oresert our Directors” Remuneration Report
{DRR} for the year ended 30 September
2022 and our revised Remuneration Po'icy
for which shareholder approval wil! be
sought at the January 2025 AGM.

Context and approach to remuneration
Cur people lie at the heart of our success,
As our business grows and becomes more
complex, our people, teams and
Crganisat'on must grow with it [tis vital
thot we have the right calibre of people ond
that we incentivise excellent performance
and reward them when they do. On page
118. Diplerna's approach to -emuneration

is itustrated showing how strategy,
perforrnance and reward align. ina
decentralised Group, we work nard to
balance alignment with locol accourtabilty
and agility. Cur reward policies and
practices have supported the growth of the
business weil over the years. During this
policy pericd, our performance has beer
excellent ond our talented management
team have doubled the size of the busiress.

“Reinforcing alignment
of strategy and
reward, 2022 was
a very strong year
of performance,
strategic execution
and consequently
reward. Long
term growth and
shareholder returns
are excellent.

Our plans remain
ambitious and we are
pleased to set out our
Remuneration Policy
for the next phase

of growth.”

zena 2L bmmua Recat 2007

1 against tnis backdrop thot we hove
considered our rernuneration poicy fortne
LRCEMmIing 1h7ee years.

2022 performance and pay

The Diplsrma team has delivered cnotner
year of strong tinancic: results, adding to
the Group's iong-terr track record of
excellent ousiness performance ond
shareholder returns. Organic growth has
peen driver by revenue initiatives, positive
demand, and pricing. Alongside this,
imglementation of our strategy continues
apace with the acquisition o* new
busnesses to bring new capabiities and
opportunities to drive future organic growth
‘With regords to scaiing, it has been ¢ year
cf excellent progress building intrastructure
for scaie, developing the target operating
maodel, and evolving the struct ures,
capabifity and culture of the Group.

Excelent delvery agamst ocur strategic
pricrities cf growth, scaling and Detivering
vaiue Respeneibly have resulted in strong
perforrmance (showh in table o page 119).
Adjusted operating profit (+29%}, reported
revenue [+29%) and free cash +119)

all exceeded annual bonus targets {on poge
130j, resu'ting in a ful: bonus poyment of
125% of salary for both domnrmy Thomson
anc Barbara Gipnes

Qur fong-term performance cont nues to
create excellert sharehoide- retu-ns. Our
three-year compounc annual growth rote
(CAGR] for adjusted earmings per share
{(EPS) i5 19%, This exceeds the performance
target maxirmum of 14% and tre return

an adiusted trading copital emp.oved
(ROATCE) is 77.3% meagning that the
wnderpin appiying te our PSP s in line with
the Group's financial model ang rreasts the
Boord's expectation. Cur re ative Trree-yeor
1otal sharehalder returny (TSR perfornance
i the 9t percentile of FTSE 2530
companies fexc uding financ o' se-vices and
Irre2strment trusts), ronking 15 our of 158
companies Based on these ¢ :

the Performance Snare Poar, =8

(2097 mas wested at —axioyy
Thorsom ard barne s Dinres ac
cther PP portopasts

P dnhnny
z4 ail

Johrny Thormson's total compensation
for 2022 (shown in the Single Figure tabie
on page 129) is £3.8m (2021 £5.2m). The
difference versus last year is maindy due
ta iower share price appreciction.

i ine with the Code, the Committee
“eviewed individual Directors' incenmtive
plan outcomes and overall rermuneration
considering the Group's underlying
performance. We have not rade any
adjustrments to our remuneration schemes
as a result of Covid, no furlough support
was taken, and no discretionat adjustments
have been applies to outcomes.
Accordingly, the Committee 15 satisfied
that the incentive plan outcomes and the
total remuneration received by Executive
Directors in respect of the year ended

30 September 2022 are consistent with the
ievels of company performance delivered
ond that tne Rernuneration Policy is
operating os intended.

Appointment of new CFC

Chiris Davies joined Diplorma as CFO on

I Novemper 2022 after Barbara Gibbes

let the Company on 30 Septernber 2022
HMoving piayved an importart role in helping
10 steer Ciploma through the candemic and
butlding streng fowndations for the future,
t~e Committee determined to treat Borbara
as o good leaver and her remuneration
arrangertents or departure were in
accordance with the Rernuneration Policy
and plan rules. Her exit crrangerents are
set out on page 129

We anoointed Chris following a thorough
process, which considered internal ond
externa candidates Diploma was Barbara's
first FTSE Board appointrment and her
oackage was set accordingty. Chris’ package
& commensarate with his experience as an
estanlshed CFO voth an excellent track
-ecord ndecant-al zeq, service-led,
ot nonenal orgarisgtions. It reflects the
‘ncrensing size and comglexity of Diplema
and the important support he will provide
nothe delivery of strategy, business
perforrmance and a robust financia’ contro!
framewdk, This provides the right balonce
#thin the cormpary ond reflects a fair
zockage The detals of Chrls's package are
adout or page 124, Conistet with oo
Zhirs ived DUy-OuUT awards i the
f, Doio~a shares and Diglomgs
=SF zrotts 1o compensate him for sorme of
fre vonae rerneneratioen awerds that he
o sutren e

Sayrnente toee a1 Cunt of the aetails of

in Dimicma,

Q
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

the remuneration foregone including the
nature, vesting dotes and perforrnance
regurrements attached 1o that
remuneration and payments wii not exceed
the expected value being forfeited. Exact
amounts will be finalised following the
publication of his previous employer's resuits
and will be disclosed in next year's DRR.

Remuneration in the workforce
The <kill and dedication of Diploma’s
colleagues tie gt the heart of our success.
The Group achieved cutstanding levels of
colieague engagement aga:n this year
{nore informaton o page 36 1o 37).
Remuneratior: in Diploma provides ¢ caretul
batance that enables local decision- making
in fine with our decentral'sed business
rmode:;, whilst ensuring guidance and
governance trom tre Greep, and incuding
’_) review of poy equ'dv which s one of the
Group's BSG priorit’es,

The CEO pay ratic Tor 2022 (deta’ion poge
135) has reduced from 1801 1¢ 1291, The
prirc pai reason for the ieduction is 1ower
share price oppreciat.on from marvet
rovements. The mediar ooy for UK
colieagues has remained at g simiar leve!
£29.074 (2001 739, 0383, with the andition
ot o, 400 new emmployees frem LK
acgLsitions. Fae exciude empioyess whe
joined t-rough acquisitions, the med'an
zov for the UK waorsforce has increased
~ arginadly 1o £22.550.

Tresyear's Groug reward guidance 1o the
‘”Pl,se'* o™ IDoKing JTTer

The first oricrity wos focusing on
aques sHfected by inflatiorary
wsirg from the macro-environiment,
o ding energy prices and ather naing

oste of dring. For the first e tne aroug's
vernance ncllaes 3o it e sievy
<f coleaquss vicveer a C £4Ck per

[eietalilag and trece oolen o =ived an

Dreasures

The 2022 overali base salary increase acrose
the Group s 7% for the workforce {2027,
A%, including senior managers. 1he
mariagement team and Cormittes will
continue to review total compensotion
proactively i order to ensure our wider
workforce is farly rewarded. The Committee
considers workforce perspectives when
setting Rerruneration Policy, Execut've
Director compensation and overseeing
senior management Compensation
frameworks.

Remuneration policy review

The Committee comrpleted a
comprenensive policy review in 2022, The
review DroCess is 5€t out on page 120 and
covered a nummBer of key faciors.

The Group nas increased consideranly in 5 ze
and comiplexity i this policy perioz shawn
inthe diogra on page 120;. Since e
appontmenrt of our CEGin 2010 17 ooz
hos coubled in size from © combination 5°
stromg orgaric grewth, strategic execy
and the acouistion of 25 strategically
important businesses. Sharehalders rove
beneftec ond Diplorra nas
FTSE 185 t¢ 7738 M over the pe
Group’s plans rema’™ ar
2 policy to recog
cesnnng Diities to attract,
Centivise managerns

ST Qrowtn wWas S Tes pRior

ton

ESG % incrensingly importamt toall our
stakenciders and we vwish to ntor
targets into our vorioDie pay
Lonus measures ore o ous, sgectic,
stretching c'ud st Dev“ﬁd e doy ik
an essential princicle of reward in O o

Wi

mEunng thot

Wore

Within the wider staehosder context,

we considerad Now we reward our whicie
workiorie, os covered earlier, The senior
Management tear engages frequently
with emciovees, either on a business-wide
basis or in the context of smmaler focus
groups, to sorcit feedback generaily cn
awide range of matters, ,nc\bdmg
rernuneration. Feedback is passed 1o the
Cormrnittee via the Executive team and is
taken ints account by the Cormmittee when
setting Executive Directors’ Rermuneration
Policy. Additionally, we poid attention 1o
now governance 1s evolving and nave made
a Aurmzer of ennancernents in cur new
wrizh are set cut on page 121
cuding ingreasing minimum sharehclding
reg.irements (MSR}) and post cessct'on
sharehoiding requi-ements,

The lact steo i the policy review was 1o
review e evant market data to inforr
i the Comrmittes's

s data cverview s set ot on
The Comrmittes is gware of, and
narefioder concerns regarding the
'm of 2ver reicnce on _,e'wchrﬂurvng, “he
Corrmittee’s driver for any increcsed reward
consioliTy o comiz
ole and 1o recognse grear

£ ygrenter e exty the

e individuo o g
Fous
oot i retain'ng our key peosle
romcreqaing rmarket
'qso’\*‘i*m’ ans TracK rr:"“'d

siorin Framen




Shareholder consultation on propesed
changes

Our 2021 DRR was supported with 93% of
votes in favour. During 2022, we consulted
extensively on our pohcy and DRR 20722
impiementation and engaged with 21 of our
wargest sharenolders, representing oround
&5% of our register, as well as the key proxy
agencies. Tne quality of the interactions
was excellent, and we appreciate the
ergagement and va uable feedback. There
was G range of views and preferences
exoressedd, but we weare pieased that the
overal weight of apinion was strongly
supportive,

Remuneration for 2023 - implementation
Fixed pay:

Az disciosed previously. Johnny Thomson's
cash aliowance inlieu of pension
contribution will redace to 4% of basic poy
fromi 1 Januory 2023 1o align with the
rnojority of the UK workforce.

Tre Committee considered Johnny
Thomscn's salary as part of the review. The
Commitree 's aware that high inflation i
not a sotd rationale for incraasing executive
pay. Tne Comimittee considered the

increased size and cormplexity of the Group
doubled insize o showr intne diagram

or page 120}, and Jobnny's varse as o
nign-cerforring CED. and concluded that
< Dase poy increase was required os part

af incregsing his total cornpensation
opportun'ty, Shaeholders asked us to
review the increase in tne context ot
mtended wider waorkforce pay increases, the
D-eConorTic environment, inflaticnary
res faced by our col'eagues and the
overat auantur of CEG reward

Hovirg taken thess views on board we
agread an nereose 1o hiz pay of &%, wnich
reTains seaw 1ne increase awarded 1o our
wiger workizree o1 7%, We beteve This
ance withir tre

her g compettive

oy des the nght -

[ o e
Comanany andd
po

Farne s Ny
DO us i

i
.
1

PSP:

Arising from the cornpelling case to increase
total compensation for the CEO, the
Committee plans to implement the new
PSP maximum this year for the CEQ, subject
to shoreholder approva of the policy.
Johnny Thomson will receive a PSP awarag
of 300% of base salary (PSP 2022} Chiris
Desvies will receive o PSP award of 200%

of base salary (PSP 2022) {which wili be
pro-rated based on him wor<ing eleven
months of the year).

A rnumber of sharehclders have expressed
a preference for EPS over TSR {provided the
ROATCE undergin remains), and in our
consultation we discussed increasing the
weighting of three-year CAGR adjusted EFS
growh to 75% of the tota. award (from
50%), with 25% {previously 50%) remaining
o THR relotive to the FTSE 250 {excluding
financia’ services and investment trusts).
As the majority of sharehoiders were
supportive, we intend 1o progress with thic
change for PSP (2022). We will retain the
ROAICE underpin, recognising this is
criticolly importart to sharehaolders.

During consultotion sharehoiders asked
thot we ensure targets are appropriately
strerching given the greater quantum of
reward proposed. The Committee
recognises that increased quanturm of
reward should be accompanied by
approprictely high levels of performance
delivery In setting targets, we seek to ensure
that the focus on orgaric growth s strong,
the quaity of acquisitions remains high and
that the right risk appetits s mairtained. In
response to feedback, we irtend to increase
EFS growth required for riaxirure payo.t
urrder the PSP from 12% to 13% for the
award 1n 2022, Tne minimom threshioid waill
rernain 9t 5%, This provides the right degree
of streteh ambit on for Diploma at this time
consider g the arganic arowtn
opportLnitios, the acguisition sioeline and
the prevarent marset conditions, The Boord
vl reantaim oversizht of ROATCE We vk

snrLs sy for eace PSP crant cyce.

Non-Executive Directors and Committee
evaluation

John Nicholas retired as Chair of the Board
n January 2022 and was succeeded by
David Lowden. Dovid joned the Board as
Non Dxecutive Director ana Charr designate
any 19 Qctober 2021, Non-Exec at've Direclor
fees were reviewed using ecuivalent inputs
and incregses are shown on page 133,

The Committee’s performance was
assessed as port of the annua Board
evaluation. | am pleosed to report that
the Conrmittee is regarded as operating
effect and that the Bea-a takes
reassurance fromn the guality of the
Cormmitiee’s work,

Conclusion

in closing | would ance again rke to thank
sharcholoers fo- thair engagerment over this
‘ast year We wili ~aintain a cdose dalogue
as we seek 1o deliver o cormpetitive,
mativating pay framework that 's tight-y
aligned to shareholder experience whilst
mairtaining good gevernance standards.
trust you find this report useful and lonk
forward 1o rece’ving your support at the
AGM on 8 Janucry 2025,

Andy Smith
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
21 November 2022
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REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE:
DIPLOMA’S ARPPROACH TO REMUNERATION

Set out below is an illustration of how
remuneration aligns to strategy and how it
cascades in our decentralised business model

Our Purpose: Diploma’s purpose is to consistently deliver value and reward our stakeholders by
making a positive difference to our colleagues, our customers and suppliers and our communities.

Diploma’s Strategy: build high-quality, scalable businesses for organic growth

Strategic pillar Short term incentive; Long term incentive: Remuneration
Annual Bonus Performance Share Plan Principles

Operating profit: EPS (ROATCE underpin): Een?u nemttio: G“Q”eg to )

) o o usiness strategy and promoting
1: 50% 75% the long-term success of the
GROWTH e Cornpany.

Revenue: Relative TSR: Supporting creation of

25% 25% Ion.g.—‘o‘srm shorehg(dgr value.
Providing an appropriate balance

between remuneration elements
which are transparent, stretching

5. Free cash:
SCALING 25%

and rigorously applied.
Providing a balance between
imrnediate and deferred
remuneration and encouraging
a high performance culture.

3: Non-financial KPts and targets in place, flexibility to
DELIVERING VALUE introduce DVR {ESG) metrics into remuneration included
RESPONSIBLY in the Policy

CASCADE OF REMUNERATION IN OUR DECENTRALISED BUSINESS:

- Rermuneration Policy: updated Policy presented to shareholders for voting at AGM in Jenuary 2023;
implementction reviewed annually.
EXECUTIVE - Emphasis on pay for performance and alignment with shareholders on sustainable long-term
DIRECTORS performance: Group Annual Bonus and PSP rmeasured on a balanced set of defined finencial
measures linked to strategy.

- Set locally by referring to Group framework which aligns metrics, targets and quantum for
different types of role. Group governance (inciuding pay equity).
- Reviewed onnually.
- Emphasis on pay for performance. Aligned variable pay, using a blend of Group and local
LEADERSHIP performance targets.
ROLES - Wider participation in Group PSP.

- Set locolly, Group/Secter governonce.
- Reviewed annually.

- Fair and competitive in local market.
WORKFORCE - Linked to colleague value proposition.




Business Performance 2022 Annual Report of Remuneration

Slatega eeotion

Sorbareanre Reward

Growth
Reverie diversitication ravenus mitiatives
sathon st uctarolly
wete farther peretrati=g
i ecararnies and ssterding

NS,

crevt
Irrcestod | sover strategealy
imipartant acguisitions,

=ziplines por ol st disposil

o Pertek and al erviros

Scaling
Ayear ol sxcitirg ress. Builairs the

Adjusted operating profit MQXimum bonus
payable

+29%

Revenue

O
% . .
+Ho7 Maximum vesting

fFree cash flow
1o on PSP

Adjusted EPS

19%

I B
(OIS it P U

ROATCE:

17.3%

Relative TSR:
percentile rank

1%

{S-yeor performance)

DVR

Excollzrt progress and accelerated

mcimentarn as busiresses embed DVR I
Iztratecios ard operotion:,

Ayear o mnere consisterT ard robost

repacrtirg

Tangets 5=1 7o the first firme

;rg;gement index Flexibility to introduce
S DVR metrics
Scope 1& 2 emissions In remuneratlon

10,615 tennes CO, e included in Policy.

tbascline years

Waste to landfill

60%

(nt year of msasarene T

2022 Broader Reward Priorities

Goal

Support lower paid colleagues most
affected by the cost of living crisis

Action

Wage increase f_é;'“collgcgaeis}did less than £40k of 7.5%,
which is higher than the overall workforce increase.

Retain talent in the competitive
talent market

Incentivise brilliant leaders on long-term success

% Biplema PLC Annual Report 2022

Wage increase for the workforce of 7% (2021: 4%).
Review of variable pay structures and quantum.

PSP participation increased to ca. 50 participants (2021: ca. 35
participants, 2020: ca. 15 participants).

To keep pace with the growing Group variable pay structures
and quantum reviewed, high pay for high performance.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

2022 Remuneration Policy Review — process
(-:._hm,",g,e.s,,to Rgmuneratﬁion Polic! arfd i't{s ir‘np!eﬁmerntm.:ior)

1. Excellent performance and increased scale and coh'\plexity 2. Wider stakeholder context

of the Group: moved from FTSE ca. 185 to FTSE ca. 1 considered during Policy review:
Adjusted earnings per share - Ambitious growth plans.

- Attracting, retaining and incentivising
management.

- Increased market worth of
management given performance
track record.

- Workforce remuneration experience
and views.

- Fecus on supporting wider workferce
during macro environment affecting
workfarce-inflation, energy.

- Increasing importance of ESG
performance.

- Broader indicators of culture e.g.
colieague engagement (Engagement
index 79%;.

- Market developments in governance
practices, ensuring our governance
aligns with needs of stakeholders.

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

FY12-18 EPS

"
: ~
< o

© 2

o
] et A :
- « = ; =
l

The Group has doubied whilst improving operating margin

3. Market insigﬂlE:
used to ‘sense check’”:

a) Information on UK pay levels for
companies of similar size FTSE 150-100
{Diploma: FTSE 111, 30 September 2022).

b) There are few direct peers for Diploma.
Hence we use a range of companies
in similar markets or with similar
value-add business models to provide
a comparison {RS Group ple, Bunzl plc,
Inchcape plc, Spirax-Sarco Engineering
ple. Rentokil Initial ple, Howden Joinery
Group Ple, Spectris ple, Halma plc, DS
Smith plc, Travis Perkins plc, Johnson
Matthey plc). Some within this list
are larger than Diploma but provide
useful insight.

c} Variable pay targets for FTSE 250.

FY19 revenue: FY22 revenue:
£544 7m £3,012.8m

Revenue growth
FY19-22

% Cortrels Seals  # Life Sciences

FY®9
Adjusted Operating Profit £97.2m
{operating margin 17.8%)

4. Shareholder consultation on proposed changes:

- Extensive, direct shareholder consultation with ca. 65% of the register.
- Coensultation with key proxy voting agencies.
- Conversations with shareholders shaped policy proposals including considerations of quantum and stretch in performance targets.




0O

2022 Remuneration Policy proposals and rationale
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Fercion aligermenl cdath sodden vk’ Censian conh ot ooy TR e
Jaroa :
Crd penzion value already ansyred 1o, widar vers

oy ng the competitiveress of Executi We recogrise (e need ta retain ana rostivale aor toan aver tho mest per
Dirzctors’ comip=nsstion oop:? ity, Cormpany groveth. The renewveed F andits implernertatior for 2022 will align pay 1
i i and criticality perfarriarce and irveston ex et 5.os ello s

NMeycharae to areeal bonos Policy maxinmaen,

e l; PSE masimiers Tront 2505 of salary to 2007 o7 salay CED andirorre
508 for the TR

For 202z, tho CECs PSP aee il e gl 12 the rew

o pay. Tha mowly app

3loday oibajyoayg

5 diceline .\ =i Atk e PSP paolloy mssima
S et L
D 2500 of m\i

PR
S

MER 1o e ne\L for t,vo FETNS C,fter ter iratior cate

Flexisility toincluds L85G metncs doring noxt policy period,

0
o
=
R
o
=
a
4
[2-]
o
Q
<
14
-
3
o
o]
(2]
@™

Proposed implementation of policy in FY23

Fixed Annual Long-term Sharehalding Post-cessation
remuneration bonus incentives guideline guideline

Joehnny Thomson Sase pay: £754,000 Max: 125% base pay  Max: 300% bose pay - Holding requirernent: Helai mg rCu' mmr emf
{CEO} Zenefits fund arget: 6255 base PSP (2022} 300% E000 base poy S50
Penzicn: £41.085 2% base pay yEIrs -*ﬁ(rﬁ“
fequivalert to 4% Perforrmance perizd: ‘f_errmrn.ﬂ_mr*- Sote
of base pay from three vears
T Jan 23) Falding poriod: five
years frorn grant

$1USWALDYS [DISUDULY

Chris Davies' Base pay: £450,000 Max: 125¢% bc: Max: 200% base pcw' Holdirg requirernent:  Holding reguireniert:
(CFO) Berefits fundd Target: 62,5 : PSP {20221 200% 250% base pay 0% of the MS5R for
Fension: £18,000 py bose pay P years after the
tequivalent to 4% Performianee pericd: termination aate
of base pay) throe yoars
Ho'ding period: five
years trom grant
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Chunge from CEObuase pay &% No change Falicy maxinum Shareholding Increcsed post-
2021 ncreGee; increased for CEO & guideline incrensed in r'esso'ion Juideline
CED pension reduced; CFG lire with new PSR from 12 months ta
New CFO appointed PSP award increased  maxima 2 years
for CEO
New CFO appeinted
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneratiol

Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link to strategy

Maximum opportunity Performance metrics
Base salary bls o S

Pl =

Pensions

Bonefits - = T T -




@am_P_o_n_-\ent - Egrln;se’and Iir]k tostrategy Ope;ution
Annual R L - s
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximum oppertunity Performance metrics
S - e - Tt oae - = . R T
asures and targets for Annual Bonus and PSP
R T e R B L Bl Sl T won T bl

B 1
lllustration of application of Policy
T = o e e e T e N e hs

Johnny Thomson




Consideration of shareholder views
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Change of

control

Compensation
pcyadie upan

Zontract Linexprred Motice eanty
dote term DenGe terrmnation Malus and clawback
- - = - - . . T e | ] BT - s ~ I
S - S by b : e [

Remuneration for new appeintments

=z R 1

o




U Employee and po

RO . -

i
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Provision 40 table

Predictability

L

Example: .2 oo v s

Proportionality T R AN R e Sl R I
Example .- : - - - ot et
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

e IETCRE IR D KR TR RSP Lo e e e
Executive Directors {audited)
Total remuneration in 2022 and 2021
Jornny Thomso:. Barporc Ginbes
2022 255 2022 207 2022
- £000 1000 £000 L0000 £000
o o m el 3es s 1,076
: : - 25 e
o no 15 L
S 807 399 B -
- 389 - 456 S B
75 -5 A - 92 -

e 22 i
Coae - 2,062 i

Vs e

Total variable 2,951 s

Single total figure 3,758 o

o . . - .
Executive Directors’ base salary (unaudited)
e o Jomer it Ao oo Tt - 7 Teals

Beparture of Barbara Gibbes and oppointment of Chris Davies (audited)
L Tt S o St U S NE EOPR e Cr T i B W R o O TSP -

Salary from
1October
2022

754

450

.._fooo

Saary fromr
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

202 2021

Contribution Pension antnbution Peasion

rate % of paid as cash rate % of paid ar cash

base salary £000 bose salory £000
10 71 T z

4 15 & 4

Annual performance bonus {(audited)
Bonus pay out for year ended 30 Septe
T = ez ey v Tt

Bonus awarded to each of the Executive Directors for year ended 30 September 2022

Base salary 2077 actea. bores - 08 o pers T LEose LIt 2022 bonus
Financial

£007 MirrLT -toiget Masr-wr objectives Total borus £000
T N 125% 125%
125% 456




Long-term incentive awards (audited)

o E P PO - ; e

Performance conditions

AR R AR A LV £ S PR LR SRR B BT LTt LTI S R R e LTE Il O L0
Ik -

% of awards

vertng
: s

boot Queands
vesting

T T C e . ooz onn T
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ANNUAL REFPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Awards vesting in 2022 (oudited)

30 Sep ZAGR tanimam Mazirum
Bare £PS 2022' - EPS target awarc
ot 4 109.4 e = _ o
- e B S 1 - E - ) - 7‘,7 - Tty - P 1 =
Toe Do Tt 3l el e P TIE nte mn  rsaued tnat U meeto te s BT amon Tt

TSR growth against FT5E 250 {excluding financial services and Investment Trusts)

TSR at
30 Sep
2022

20.0% p.a.

Mediar Upper Guartie Maxmur aware

Veoted cwargd

— 1 - - = ten N | - R R T Lo o T . R A
Share Srcre
price at Proportion Shares Performnnce apprecict on
30 Sep 2027 of oward vested
pence vesting number

A 100%

85,481

Toenel T LS I RS 100%

19,374

Dividend equivalent payments {audited)
B s B N R '

Long-term incentive plan — awards granted in the year (audited)




Diploma PLC 2011 and 2020 Performance Share Plan (audited)

Shares Shares

Shiames over which over which

Foce varwe ot SveT wingh awards awards

Marter the awarc ot fng ot awanrds helo gronted Vested Lapsed held at

price ataate date of grant pectormance at ™ Dct during during the during the 30 Sep

of aware: £000 =l Veuting dote 201 the year pericd period 2022

Johnny Thomson o . o
el PR CUT T s Lloe Tl w2l B - 85,481 - -
Lot 0 : LTen TEle - - - 74,804
L4 57,007 ~ - 57,007

o]

MIIAIIA

T BRI R e I - 19,374 - -
S A =y - - (8,601 17,201
e Al ser DDid TUGes 101z 20,485 - (13,656) 6,829

yoday 2bajong
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Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration (audited)

Tota. fees . .
2022 202t
£000 £000
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Executive Directors’ interests (audited)
in options over shares

L 1T LT LTI e e r . B i foam
Vesteg Opticns
Yeor of Opuon: 0s ot Exercised Juring the unexercised as Exercise ngrmiagl
vesting 1 0et 20 wroyear vear at 30 Sep 2022 price* e gote Expicy oote
. T Lnn : - LA - £1 ) Ter IoI%
KN - oA 85,481 £1 ' "~
LDt P - Tl 19,374 £1 SR

Directors’ interests in ordinary shares

As ot 30 Sep 2022 A o1 30 Sep 202

Options with
Ordinary  Options vested performance
shares  butunexercised ~ measures

, R T 102,330 85,481 131,811 S o Ll
Byl 5,082 19,374 24,030 Tl N

Optione wits

Lot g ve aerformance

[FTEARNETY- T

Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ interests in ordinary shares {audited)
T S L SR S U 1Tt P A R e s : -
—— [ —— o IMTeresl 1m OrQINCTy SN0 e
U [ I ~ - o Asat305ep2022 £:ct 305

) : ) . o 2,500
: 9,045 S
S 7,545 cos
- - 5,045 -t
- - 2,045 e




Remuneration in context
Chief Executive pay ratic {uncudited)
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Aligning pay with performance {unaudited)

ounuIaA0g alpiodic?)

VIt TU T o DT o T T e T [ z R Z SLat -

Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 hoilding over ten years
<00 -;!
]
3
o,
50 o
w
-+
o
I d
f=1nld] g
o
3
o
4535 ]
390 Q
T
®
-
= 2
-y
o
-
3
. <]
) =4
S0 e 204 3L Sep #0L A0 Rep 2007 300 PLOE g

Presiug g imvestraens Tront




ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Chief Executive Officer remuneration compared with annual growth in TSR {unoudited)

Actun’ share

CEC single A0l Donas cward vesting
TQute o i agoinst @ga.nst Anngal
remaner max Mg g growth
Mgmie 4 opporTumity Sopatiunty TR
Johnny Thomson 3,758 100% 100% -17%
. - TaT O Vo LI
Sl Inal -
Zloe = vl o -
Relative importance of Executive Director remuneration (unaudited)
2022 Tronge
£m [
oo - i 177.5 ‘ ST
B - 56.2 _- N

Percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees (unaudited)
N C = B T : et

o _ Base saiary fes zhonge e Pensior change %" _ Torabie pere’ nEnge .
2022 2022 2020 2022 ooe 2024 2022
vs 2021 v v. 209 vs 2021 ve 2019 vs 2021 v 2020 we 2078 vs 2021
Executive Directors
N _ Mes
- - +3 thonoe - -18 +2 -< € +3 -
[ Ne -
T +7 chanse - +7 chonae - +2 - +7 -
Non-Executive Directors’
ST n/a
- -69 B
Nz
- - +3 TnInge
. T +& -
R +3 H
ooz - +185 - -
Employees of the
Parent Company n/a - n/a : n/a -
Senior management team +7.5 +7.5 - cctoe +22




Executives and senior management below the Board {unaudited)

ST rIe e 0L T RN T M R PR STt T T - "
N BN REAR TR . . I : i
- : ot SRR hs Tl 30T . e - co SRR
Shares over
Shore which . Shares
fate vaeue o* v whacr awards over which
Marked prine  the owars ot Erd of granted Vested Lapsed awards held
at dote of  azte of grant  pertormance during the during the during the at 30 Sep -
cward 1300 pEnod year yvear year 2022
R . ot L ey - 29546 4,460~ - -
- S Z - - 9,612 39,860
) . o : - - 102,258 - 8,086 94,172

GOVERNANCE
Remuneration Cormmittee

The Remuneration Committee Report

= P e e e P T g

Remuneraticn principles and structure
R P m e b e e e e e e
ol TR T LS SRR .

Key duties and focus in 2022
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Services from external advisors (unaudited

- - Do +

Trher services
provided 1o the

Anpoant Zompeny sex (£

Twow N iz

Shareholder voting at previous Annual General Meeting {unaudited)




DIRECTORS’” REPORT

o O S L T S L Shareholders

SEgrae e

ST R

Shareholders
Incoerporation and pri

ncipal activity

- <
B 1]
L]
£,
3 N A z TIalT Ce- ®
o PR P - . C o z
Contracts of significance and change of control
T s o oo TTORITIT T T 3T e DT St
.

Restrictions on transfer of shares

. T S Pt

31o0day oibaynis

Substantial shareholdings

Ferceniage of Percertage
ordimary Lnares of ordinary
Septembet share capital

2022, iNovember 2072)

FIUDUISACD a;mod:o:)

LT s Loy CT o
S R o
- Tar NI omEnae 5
. a
o CRA IS T L N et 3
X
[ - Bl e —. w
=]
+
. R ST ot S ©
. . 3
: - : o
T o Authority to make market purchases of own shares “
B T L P cen s -
Share capital A A o e
. '_‘“: R o g - - N | - 0
- P T - - - =Y
R o e a- - >
- . - + s s . = B o
- Sa - -
- . v - — - - 5
T g
Ligbility insurance and indemnities §
D e 3
T e Td A T B Tl : =2
a e - s oo o
oI - - : £




DIRECTORS' REFORT
CONTINUED

ures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4C

Disclos
C

A i SN e - - e — - [
I
Directors’ assessment of going concern
§ . .

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
financial stoternents
Tes T oeg eres o

Non-financial information statement

. e e - e =

Financial

Results and dividends B e
Independent Auditors o K S N
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 e
Nate £m i
Revenue - o B - - - I 10128 o
STt oo=t (638.3) Lol
Gross profit T - 374.5 PRy
T e e (25.9} I
O St {204.3) Ll
Operating profit z 144.3 -~
Tl ey s {14.8)
Profit before tax 129.5 e
s EwmLe Tl z (34.1) L
Profit for the year 95.4
Z St Tttt ooz 94.7 =-E
““““ - 0.7 ,
— — 954 i
Earnings per share
B s 76.1p
- TEseE B - 75.9p -
ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES’
2022
ot £m
e B T T - 144.3
B B A e R - Z 446.9
;&ajus_t-ezd operoting profit T T o o - 1912 <k
B A Bt = (11.6)
Adjusted profit before tax - o T - e =
Adjusted earnings per share 107.5p ST




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 2om
Hate £m [
Profit for the year S o - 954
ltemns that will not be reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement B S
. S e ey o 10.6 =
L . (2.8) =
ol = _ - e : o 8" L
Items that moy be reclassified to the Consclidated Income Statement
d I R RIS 76.8 .
DL T e T - 4.5 =
- I B T I s -z (0.4} ’
B w0 (1.1
i S 7 79.8 -0
Total Other Comprehensive Income 87.6 .
Total Com;;riehgns;irvé Income for ’Ehe_y;:r_ o o o 183.0 el
SRR N
Cmwe STt Doevimr 182.2 o é
i 0.8 a2
o - )  183.0
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Sharg Sngre Transtation Heaging Mingnt e Total
capio: e am reserve reserve Imterests equity
Nete £ i i £~ Hl £m
At 10ctober 2020 I T e S 7 5307
R SR = 60.5
B 4 1.8
i A 1.0 1.0
(0.5) {0.5)
EMe - = - - - 0.9
T
[T - - - . (0.9} (0.9)
R = A - - - : - - 0.7
Dol T LT - - - {52.9} (53.2)
At 30 September 2021 s Tt L ’ 536.3 = 541.0
e T A 182.2 - 183.0
: 4 - 2.8 2.8
- 0.4 0.4
- - o (2.8) (2.8)
- 2.5
- (1.3)
(1.9) (1.9)
1.2 1.2
Ve L. - o i - ) {0_3)
T - {56.2) . (56.4)
At 30 September 2022 63  188.6 888 3.2 375.1 662.0 6.2 668.2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
LioetRIGES RN

FREMEER DU

2022 vl
Note £m fre

Non-current assets
e TERE N B 3723 ol
Y] 455.0 344 5
LT R B 10 4.1 2o
G T N TSI R A N 49.6 3 A

- -
Alaguts o 1

sl freE mmaaet 12 &42.4 44 ¢
ERN T oseets 4 6.4
Defered o astets K] a.2 G

R Y

950.0 AT
Current assets
T e o 217.4 12
e enkles it 169.9 "

Ve
TS 20 L osl ole filentg

; a7 Z
429.0 22

Lo oo

Current liabiiities
oo emage o3 (30.5) [4l-Ae)

e (189.5) S
(1.8) e
1% {19.0 v
2 (12.7)

(263 .5}
Net current assets 165.5
Total assets fess current hiabilities 1,?15.5
Non-current liabilities
N G S P T -
s (340.1)
LUTEE . 1z (56.4)
Coc e e E (12.4)
LeETETEl Y i op s ] (38.4)
Egt assets 668.2

Equity

Tetl e s 375.1 525
Totolshareholders' equity 662.0 Fab
R S VR TIN Z% 6.2 4.

Total equity ) - o N ] o 668.2 L




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 250
Hote £m B
Operating profit - S 443 T
R R LA 446.9 Ll4
I N 18.1 LE
B I L Lot (28.7) -
Cash flow from op_erdtir;g activities a . - o 1806 L
R N (15.0)
T (40.6}
Net cash from operating activities 125.0
Cash flow from investing activities o o B T
L : R (173.0) =i
R St g {7.1) -
T a7 et ot - 15.7
« feiiert, : {(14.3)
A I I ‘ (1.1) z
= L L L R S LI RSN T Q.9 25
Net cash used in investing activities {171.9) -
Cash flow from financing activities ST S
. | - (56.2) -
ST + : (0.2)
- . - (0.3)
e o s {2.8) =
= 154.8 S
s (20.0) la
- o {10.9) ~ 7
Net cusifilijféoir;:f:i’r:c;\cing activities _64_4_ R
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - 17.5 3
. s NI L s 24.8 =
e I £ A L T N S TN T {0.6) -
Cash and cash e_(:iufvclents ctend of year o 41.7 as
ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES?
2022 7L
Nete £fm im
Free cash flow . 120.4 coo
LIt n . 133.9
Free cash flow conversion % : 0%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

1. General information




o sewt L Cowes 0 Coperste . B
ar 2022 2007 2022 262 2022 2021
- ) £m £ £m frm £m L
co L TR 481.9 - S| Tesa4s oo
= R } 10.9 - 58.5
Reverue 188.6 =T 3314 - 4928 o - 1,012.8
=31 bad
39.7 57.0 104.0 (18.2) : 182.5
PR 1.3 5.6 1.8 : - 8.7
Adjusted operating profit 41.0 0 s2.86 0 - 105.8 - (18.2) < 191.2
oy 15 - (16.6) (30.5) 1.3) (46.9)
Operating profit 425 - 46.0 - 75.3 Zs (19.5) 2 1443
Tt et 74.0 o 2075 s 211.5 s - 493.0
106.2 o 125.2 ST 1409 coE - 372.3
- qre g e 74.9 z" 100.2 L2299 =T - 455.0
2551 L 432.9 i 632.3 oz - 1,320.3
. 0.2 : 0.2
47 o 417
1.8 1.8
6.4 6.4
oLt == 8.6 . 8.6
Total assets 2551 “- A%2¢ s 6323 - < 587 - 1,379.0
Tiercoar ten C(AL7y T (108.3) st (92.8) 5 - (237.6)
- (38.4) L (38.4)
(31.4) e (31.4)
(32.8) e (32.8)
T (370.6) (370.6)
Total liabilities (41.7) T 103.3) i (92.8) - (473.2) T | (710.8)
Net assets 213.4 E 329.6 S £ 5397 T (41458) . < . | 668.2
Other Sector information
Life Scengen Lenee [T R T TowrenTte
2022 20N 2022 P 2022 2u 2022 ple -2_022
£m £m i £ i~ £m i fm
E Y 37 \ 2.7 0.9 : 153
Tl o 2.9 35 .- 4.6 § 0.2 n.2
Revenué;cognition - o o - S
176.4 315.6 492.8 . - 984.8
12.2 15.8 E - - 28.0
- 1886 - - 334 - 4928 . - - 1,012.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

3. Geographic segment analysis by origin

Adusted cperating Tad nz cep ta!
o B L horcgrens o empeves  Copnralexperaure
2022 2021 2022 20 2022 2022 202 2022 202
- e > Em Em . fm _ te  Em  Em
. 209.7 21.0 = 193.%6 B 202.2 7 3.4 :
= 166.7 : 29.3 e 169.1 = 179.8 ST 1.7 s
- 561.0 24 129.5 519.2 ERT 614.2 Z.. 8.9 <

1.4 e 57.) Lo 62.3 L 1.3 oE

1912 si 939.0 S 1,088.5 " 153 o

4. Group employee costs
Average number of employees

2 i o ) i T - 423
Tz 1,174 TIAE

o 981 R
ISR L , 36 B »

Number 6;;ﬁwplafée:avéruge 7

Number of empioyees — year end 2,909 40w

Group employee costs, including key management
2022 proval
L

PR T AT 154.8 s
SR 13.3 Ds

R 8.6
e 2.8 1 x
177.5 =

2022 2020
£ Lo

Lo T Tttt a0t ea i siie 5.0 £
R R LTI T 0.4

LIt 0.2 L

o e 2.4 B

8.0 T

2022 L
£

P 0.5 e




5. Financial expense, net

Interest (expense)/income ond similar charges

o (1.0}

1
©
N
MIIAIIAQ

Net interest expense and similar charges
CTARE LR R (3.2) -

Financial expense, net (14.8)

6. Tax expense

Current tax

yioday 316830435

- - 1¢.0 .
z EHES o o _30.8 R
40.8 o

Total current tax -_ - R " 40.7”7 o

Deferred tax

Total deferred tax - S - o (6.6)

22UDUIaADE) 93D10di0D)

Total tax on profit for the year 34.1 s

sl

3

- - - ]

3

o,

- o

oo =

a

~+

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year 5
i e S T E P TN S P relneT TR ot - - ™
3

- - +

(L]

e = - e S (@]

- o 24.6 - -3

&

LTt -

6.7 : =

4

(0.1) E

I S e . -, . - o

S ’ © j=d

R o o L L o 2.9 =4
Totel tax on profit for the year 34.1



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

- A o Tt T Lt ;
e T - - I
7. Dividends
2022 202 2022 2t
— pencepershare  pencepwsnae &m0 fm
= B [ 15.0 [ 18.7 -
SR - 30 o 37.3 fi_
45.1 L2 56.2 -
.
8. Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share

Adjusted earnings per share
2022 2021 2022 2021
pence per share  pence per rhace £m Lev
Profit before tax S T aes -
T - {34.1) -
T = {0.7)

Earnings for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company 76.1 94.7 H
- o N 31.4 - 39.2 :
Adjusted earnings T w75 o 133.9 o

9. Goodwill
Lote Sonce: Segle Totat
£ i £m
LT eoe. T T T e e e T T T T Tyse0
- o - e 7 117.6
7 - (3.8)
S o - - - 4.7)
z - T (7.4)
Al - o T S 2607
- - e 81.0
SR T - : < 30.6
At 30 Septermnber 2022 e B 372.3



Trade _Total
nGTnEs acquisition Other
o suppler Lrongs and intangible intangible
reiction:mups aaabaoses assets assets
im i £m £m
Cost
Lo tireoer ;e 183.2 7.6
b - - 1.4
LA 306.8 0.2
‘ (3.6) (0.9)
(6.9 (0.4)
, (16.8) (0.3)
- T T ae27 7.6
- 1.0
St o 99.9 0.8
T - (1.1}
R I A B = 69.9 1.0
At 30 September 2022 30.9 53.7 632.5 8.3
Amortisation o o o o
Sl - 96.0 4.6
4 18.7 -
14.4 0.7
(3.6) {0.7)
t: {5.4) (0.1
(2.3) (0.3)
: 17.8 42
Looal-l A 4.0 -
o E z < 38.4 0.8
o - (0.4)
BRSSP P 17.3 0.6
At 30 September 20 24.6 12.8 177.5 5.2
Net book value - o '
At 30 September 2022 6.3 40.9 455.0 4.1
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[ag
=
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A
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-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

1. Property, plant and equipment
Fraetiong Flast and Hosooa SR
Dropetues sgu.nrrent —quipriest Total
i fmr Lrm £m
Cost
et : - . - 63.3
S ia o2 4.9
RS B - < 21.8
- == - - {7.6)
el - - - (10.6)
- - {2.4)
- - ) e i Lz 69.4
> ol 2 14.3
o - Z 6.7
- (5.0)
R A T . - o 12.3
At 30 September 2022 T T ss 132 enz w7 en7
Depreciation T - T o - - N
LT - 35.4
_ - = s 9.2
""" - (5.5}
: - (4.5)
g - {0.6)
= ‘ - 340
Bk 10.4
: - (3.7)
FaeatomTont o Lrtee et g - - 7.4
At 30 September 2022 1.1 5.2 32.7 .1 48.1
ﬁ-.bodk value . ’ h T T S T T T T
At 30 September 2022 2.5 8.0 28.5 10.6 49.6




12. Leases - right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Right-of-use assets

Lanz & Piart b Mo A ot
sasldings skt ey ~ebneres [T =T Total
i ir ire fre frmn
Cost
= - 38.9
o - 25.9
- - (2.6)
- i w {0.9)
- - (0.7)
- - . - : 61.6
St - Z - 25.4
- ) (2.0)
T - 6.9
At 30 September 2022 811 0.8 - 8.3 17 e
5eprecic'tion S o
Lot Dewrre JLIT c . 7.3
- < z 10.8
- - {0.8)
- (0.5)
(0.1}
- - 16.7
B - ot - 12.7
z - - (1.3)
Teo e e e s 1.4
At 30 Septernber 2022 253 0.3 3.0 0.9 29.5
Net book value - ' '
At 30 September 2022 55.8 0.5 5.3 0.8 62.4
T :—ru\:' e el - e =
Lease liabilities
) o~ . 2022 20
£m Lo
- T o 48.3 T
- 26.6 -
(0.9)
{13.5)
“ 2.6 -
- T 6.0 .
At 30 September S 69.1 <
. £m 3=
12.7 h
. e . D - - . . 56.4 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

13. Deferred tax

2022
im

{21.9)
8.6
(17.6)
(3.9)
(1.4)

(38.2)

Arsets

Labilites

2022

2621 " 2022
i £m

Net

o4 {5.8)

(42.0)
- (1.0)
- (0.1)

T (38.2)

14. Inventories

2022
£m

158.9
(7.2)

151.7
9.8
8.4

169.9

Assets held for sale




b

(%)

>

0
MIAIBAD

2022 202
£m |

e T T T T 207 =

yodey 21621p3g

26.8 T

B = = 9
2022 2021 =
- S S — . fm o ]
3.6 o
s

3.4 S
g
0.6 2
. e e (0.4) T 2
7.2 : ]
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a7 E b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

17. Cash and cash equivalents
2022 251

UK uss s Euro Other Total Nl A &3 Eure Titngr Totgl

£m £m £m £m £m £m i £ i~ im £ im

‘ . - 5.2 71 23 78 64 388 1 =& T - e
TIE At - 0.1 18 - 1w 29 - -
15.2 7.2 4.1 7.8 7.4 4.7 BE e : z

18. Financial instruments

It LT ThnT Aol A

Tes s Tt Tooie o Talt L e
i = ) et Trode 1Tt

a) Credit risk

T.‘L' - - e T T - e T -'7"‘.7-""‘ . LT : = LT ST
- : ‘
z = 1 - h = = 1 - . B
d - Bl P T - - - g p
. - - - - - - T.
i o= Y £ - = B
- ot - - -, - .
|
I = - - - = = =

Carrv ng amaount

2022 200
£m £

Impairment of financial assets



N LA e £ TRl L AN -
T vor ttes turitano.m on SRl Gertemtoor gnonETIiTy
2022 2520
_ . . Em i
. - e an 204.0
T e R 2022 22
£m fm
- 96.4 =
T - 25.8 -
e e 35.0 -
e o B B 370.6 L
527.8 I
171.7 -7
N e 48.7 c
T o B e 3074 00 "
527.8
T B 3 N T i AR Te LT " R - . -
¢} Currency risk
T o 'JE‘:,H{-" TuIE e . J‘J%:' C :
. . I TV ] .

o]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

CONTINUED

2022 202
- g E

i - 10.3
B z 2.6 <
- e LA
L 12.6 -
E R 12.9 -
e E 5.4 T

d) Interest rate risk

B . . » .
- . e
1 - -y ~ 1 -
e) Fair values
T mes el e I S TR P - - s o ot e
Derivatives
- - . _ e - e

Trade and other receivables/payables

Borrowings

cher liabilities

f) Capital management risk




R

19. Other liabilities

2022
£m

7.4
24.0

31.4

19.0
12.4

2022
£m

5.2
1.9
0.2
0.1

fadtines Dearount anwing Feva uzton SOy nents

fre £r Had Cm

18.5

12.3 0.4 (0.6) T s

4.9

B.&
0.5
0.5
2.3
0.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

20. Minority interests

on

NS

21. Acquisitions and disposals of businesses
Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group Limited

Other acquisitions




Sant 17 ‘)‘1 5
R&G Lrous ol Ohers Total

Boow value Four value Zok valae Fon vilue Boob waiat For vage Book value Fair value

frm £ £ j2ad in i-5 £m £m

Ioalce cAmeare il i ' [ - 1 98.2
- 1o o o (0.7) (18.5)
o s T I R i1 o : - . a o 6.7 6.7
L e a7 < - L. 28.2 2641

T4 L 7 T T s . 22.7 22.3

o o . - - - (28.9) {29.7)

7 4.6 49.1 3.0 3.0  10.4  25.0 28.0 1051

- . ~ T . o - 80.6
N - - (2.5)

Lo < s ez 178.3

o aa e - - (6.1)
h o T T e R 7 I
- . - 1.0

183.2

Acquisitions revenue and adjusted operating profit
R L1 LA LI LAt S ST A . N -
7 Fre fngrme
Foor vareg operaling
Rovimue X W % oot
ir }ad £ im
_ 17 - -
S 585 - 65.8 1243 87 109 19.6
Disposals
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

22. Reconciliation of operating profit to cash fiow from operating activities

Operating profit -
Adjusted operating profit

Non-cash items and other
Operating cash fiow before changes in working capital

Increase in working capital

2022 2022 2 200
£m £m ST o dm

Cash flow from operating octivities

23, (Net debt)/cash funds

- : (370.8)

s - - (328.9)

Cash funds/(net debt) -

s -

i




24. Retirement benefit asset and obligations

'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

@) Pension surplus / (deficit) included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e

Pension scheme net asset / (deﬁcit") -

Amounts

¢} Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income

Actuarial gaTn credited fﬁheiténsoligcteidrsr‘ticte:en‘;o%?ér;\_brérén;ve income

Nt R St T R

2022
£m

2.7

(0.6)
(8.5)

2020
£,

(Asset) / deficit os ot 30 Septermber

(6.4)

e} Analysis of movernents in the present value of the Scherme liabilities

2022
im

41.0
0.7
0.8

{15.7)

(1.3)
255




f) Analysis of movements in the present vaolue of the Scheme assets

At 30 September S 319 e 3
T -t e e e R T e el oLt Lue T 17

Assets

Tro S e - - 1 ERE R 1 e ST T e ey e DT

2022 2021

2022 oz 2020 2019
% =

T T e o 3.4 T T Lo I
3.2 o o L4

- + - — -
Tt
- - - - fetimgued
[T At A
fator Losur puar K i
Risk mitigation strategies
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

Effect of the Scheme on the Group’s future cash flows

O S s = el [ R L I N U P D

The Xubo Pension Scheme (the Kubo Scheme)

(A IR Bl N .ot

STLna o Tesnttmerlno bl _(15.5)
Pension scheme net deficit -

2022 2021
e 0
e ] o o T ) B
Amount chorged to operating profit in the Consolidated Income Statement (0.5) i
¢) Analysis of movement in the pension deficit 202 .
I U - S
- S 2.2 -
< - E To -z = == 0.5
Dot L (0.5} -
Pt e L Rt T L (2.1}
R o E i (0.1)
At 30 Septernber - -
d} Amounts recognised in the Copsol]do‘ted Statement of Comprehensive Income i
: SSTEpn o TEET - : e EET R B 2022 200
_ o - _ _ _ _ _ _ - ~ . _Em _ i
- R S (1.3} :
T o - ) R 4.2 -
- EE Tt (0.4}

DT - : R I =) B,
Actuarial gain credited in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incorme 21 N
Principal actuarial assumptions for the Kube $cheme at balance sheet dates

2022 o
S e T T T T T e - 0% '
R T SR R L T 1.0%
e 2.3%
TTe- Tl 1.0% g

Cotu o BVG2020 R
Sensitivities




Effect of the Kubo Scheme on the Group's future cash flows
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26. Exchange rates
T TR T R U L L I L TS SO *
' Averaae Ciozing

2022 200 2022 2mn
S 1.27 i 112 T
s oao LT 1.63 1.53

5 118 -' 114 -
1.20 1.10 :
S e o 1.79 - 1.74
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27.1 Adjusted operating profit and adjusted operating margin
S e S e .
- - ’ ’ ’ o
2022
e S _ Nete o Em

- 1443
T T e J' oLt ) o _ 44.9

Adjusted operating profit w2z
18.9% -

I
3
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E]
o,
o
w
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a
+
3
o
3
-
(5]

Adjusted operating margin

27.2 Adjusted profit before tax

B I

Adjusted operating profit

UOHDWIOU] JBUID

Adjusted profit before tax ) - ' - ' 179.6




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

27.3 Adjusted earnings per sha

re

2022 apdl 2022 26
I . _ __ pencepershare pencepe snore £m :
Profit before tax

Sl (34.1) S
R I I - o _,__.i_‘___,(g‘_”ﬁ o R
Earnings for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company 7641 K 94.7 oe s
AL T Ir XTI DD TR LTIWLOT TUT LInL DT 0T L GTenTYLTOL LTI

; DIt - . ) - - 31.4 P 39.2

A?jds?ed earnings 07 T T 133.9 T

27.4 Free cash flow and free cash flow conversion

- = - b = - R b i - -
2022
tete £m
- T L h - T T/ - T/ - - T T R
I - 56.2
- - 0.2
- - _ 0.3
177.6 el
< : N - 6.5 <
C N E (13.7)
B s - 71 ’
S S L ] - (131.3) J-

Free cash flow 120.4

Adjusted earnings 133.9 -
Free cash flow conversion 90% -




27.5 Trading capital employed and ROATCE

T

2022

£m

668.2

L 38.2
: (6.4)

ST TR oo T ore o e T 29‘6
< 328.9

Reported trading capitai employed 1,058.5
EEREIR IR T S 99.6

B S CUL R e TR st el

¥
P
P
PR

Adjusted trading capital employed ' ] 1,158.1
Ldist doreatag e 191.2

Hpsdmeme o g seeeoets 9.7

Pro forma adjusted operating profit B —__ 2009
ROATCE 17.3%

e S o ' - IR
i (370.6)

RN+ ORI L R RUNTI ST A ST UEEL ot TN R 231
E\Jet debt (average exchange rates) o ___ T T o ___{305.8)

Toperatia Tt ) . 191.2
Do o n.2
: 1.2

Cetae Lt GgocionT L (1.1)

EBITDA

Net debt te EBITDA S T T 1.4x

R IR IR

27.7 Dividend cover
[FEAYS ) 2022
St Do - 107.5

Dividendcover o ' 2.0

.
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O

yrodey 2iba3biayg MBIAIBA

IJUDUIIAOD OI.IGJOC'.IO:)

S}USWILD3S |DISUDULY

UOIIDUIICU] JYAO




GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

1.1 Basis of preparation

Liquidity and financing position Cel el o el el Lee
- - g Zoll e - 1.2 Basis of conseclidation



1.6 Employee benefits
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1.2.a. New acco
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unting standards adopted

1.3 Acquisitions
L A ST [ S S B
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1.4 Divestments
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1.5 Revenue recognition
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

1.8 Taxation




1.9 Property, plant and equipment

d) Goodwill - business combinations
~ . vm e, el 4 - - - e e e oy ch o e .
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

CONTINUED
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PANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2022
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

d) Investments
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Our audit appreach

Overview

The scope of our audit
Key oudit matters
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

How we tailored the audit scope
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Corporate governance statement
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statement
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Appointment ‘

-
o e
Christopher Burns (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP



SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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FIVE YEAR RECORD

Year enoed 30 September
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